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Notes to Financial Statements 817§ 3R = Kiz:
31 December 2006 —EZEXF+-_A=+—H

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Shenzhen Investment Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered office of the Company is
located at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, 9 Science Museum
Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

—  Property development

—  Property investment

—  Property management

—  Provision of transportation services

— Manufacture and sale of industrial and commercial products
— Infrastructure investment

In the opinion of the directors, the parent and the ultimate holding
company of the Group is Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited
(“Shum Yip Holdings”), which is a private company incorporated in
Hong Kong.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which also
include Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for investment properties,
certain buildings and equity investments, which have been measured
at fair value. Interests in an associate classified as held for sale are
stated at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less
costs to sell as further explained in note 2.4. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2006. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of
acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
All significant intercompany transactions and balances within the
Group are eliminated on consolidation.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 21 B EHE (1B)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The acquisition of subsidiaries during the year has been accounted
for using the purchase method of accounting. This method involves
allocating the cost of the business combinations to the fair value of
the identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed at the date of acquisition. The cost of the acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of
exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders not
held by the Group in the results and net assets of the Company’s
subsidiaries.

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements. Except for in
certain cases, giving rise to new and revised accounting policies and
additional disclosures, the adoption of these new and revised
standards and interpretation has had no material effect on these
financial statements.
HKAS 21 Amendment Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation
Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements: Amendments as a
consequence of the Companies
(Amendment) Ordinance 2005
Financial Guarantee Contracts

HKAS 27 Amendment

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4
Amendments

HKAS 39 Amendment Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of

Forecast Intragroup Transactions

HKAS 39 Amendment The Fair Value Option

HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement

contains a Lease
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22HARBEEITERMBRELEN 28
(%)

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
The principal changes in accounting policies are as follows: SHBRERNEEZEHIT

(a) HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange (a) ERAESHEFANREREH 2 FE
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(b)

()

Rates

Upon the adoption of the HKAS 21 Amendment regarding a net
investment in a foreign operation, all exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net
investment in a foreign operation are recognised in a separate
component of equity in the consolidated financial statements
irrespective of the currency in which the monetary item is
denominated. This change has had no impact on these financial
statements as at 31 December 2006 or 31 December 2005.

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

The adoption of the revised HKAS 27 has resulted in a change
in accounting policy relating to the definition of a subsidiary for
the purpose of the consolidated financial statements as
described in note 2.4 “Summary of significant accounting
policies” below.

HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement

()  Amendment for financial guarantee contracts

This amendment has revised the scope of HKAS 39 to
require financial guarantee contracts issued that are not
considered insurance contracts, to be recognised initially
at fair value and to be remeasured at the higher of the
amount determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with HKAS 18
Revenue. The adoption of this amendment has had no
material impact on these financial statements.
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(c) HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement (Continued)

(it

(i)

Amendment for the fair value option

This amendment has changed the definition of a financial
instrument classified as fair value through profit or loss and
has restricted the use of the option to designate any financial
asset or any financial liability to be measured at fair value
through the income statement. The adoption of this
amendment has had no material impact on the financial
statements.

Amendment for cash flow hedge accounting of forecast
intragroup transactions

This amendment has revised HKAS 39 to permit the foreign
currency risk of a highly probable intragroup forecast
transaction to qualify as a hedged item in a cash flow hedge,
provided that the transaction is denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity entering into
that transaction and that the foreign currency risk will affect
the consolidated income statement. As the Group currently
has no such transactions, the amendment has had no effect
on these financial statements.

(d) HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease

The Group has determined based on this interpretation that
certain arrangements of the Group contained leases and
accordingly, the Group has treated them in accordance with
HKAS 17 Leases. However, the adoption of this interpretation
has had no material impact on these financial statements.
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 EEMEREMNET B BRELEN 2
48

68

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The HKAS 1 Amendment shall be applied for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2007. The revised standard will affect the
disclosures about qualitative information about the Group’s objective,
policies and processes for managing capital; quantitative data about
what the Company regards as capital; and compliance with any capital
requirements and the consequences of any non-compliance.

HKFRS 7 shall be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2007. The standard requires disclosures that enable users
of the financial statements to evaluate the significance of the Group’s
financial instruments and the nature and extent of risks arising from
those financial instruments.

=

B The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, REBE W AN ZEMBHRRER P2 B/MER
L that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial EREV T R] RS E] OB B B 15 3R 5 2 Rl
k(h; statements.
8 Elck Rl BARE
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g HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures BB SIS %R Rt T AR
% E75%
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 ERMERERNEBUBREEA 2T
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS & (&)
(Continued)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 7, HK(IFRIC)-Int 8, HK(IFRIC)-Int 9, HK(IFRIC)-Int 10, 5% (BBRMBREREZES) —2EBETR B
HKFRS 8, HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 and HK(FRIC)-Int 12 shall be applied for B (BERVBHRERELZEEY) —REFSR B8
annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2006, 1 May 20086, 1 (BERMBREREZEES) —2BFR &F
June 2006, 1 November 2006, 1 January 2009, 1 March 2007 and 1 (BB BHREZEZE]) —ZBE109% &%
January 2008, respectively. W ERIE 8 BB (B EHRERESR
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The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact AEE EEFHEERFERAZEN] REIEF]HE
of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application. So far, R EERINFE -BEBRILLEA BREBSH
except for HKFRS 8, HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 which B AEnAEMm BB SRS ERIE8Y B
were recently issued by HKICPA and the impart on the financial (ERMBHREREEZE®) —ZBE1REEE
statements is still under consideration, it has concluded that while (R BHRERELZES) —2EE 129 R IET
the adoption of the HKAS 1 Amendment and HKFRS 7 may result in HEEBBBRERZZEIN AEERBRATE
new or amended disclosures, the other new and revised HKFRSs SR ERE 15 (KIE5]) REBUBREERE
are unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group'’s results of TSR] BE B BT S S RT B FR - I LT ET R A
operations and financial position. BRI BRI SIS LRI KA RE AR R B A AL =
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A subsidiary is an entity in which the Company, directly or indirectly,
controls more than half of its voting power or issued share capital or
controls the composition of its board of directors; or over which the
Company has a contractual right to exercise a dominant influence
with respect to that entity’s financial and operating policies.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or jointly-controlled
entity, in which the Group has a long term interest of generally not
less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a
position to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of
associates is included in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated reserves, respectively. The Group’s interests in
associates are stated in the consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.

The results of associates are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s interests in associates are treated as non-current assets
and are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for sale, it is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets
acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed as at the
date of acquisition.

Gooawill on acquisitions for which the agreement date is on or after
1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet as an asset, initially measured at cost and subsequently
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 T EEHBECHE
POLICIES
Subsidiaries Lol NG|
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING QAT ESHBECHE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is so allocated:

e represents the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes; and

e isnot larger than a segment based on either the Group’s primary
or the Group’s secondary reporting format determined in
accordance with HKAS 14 Segment Reporting.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included
in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or
loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this
circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Goodwill previously eliminated against consolidated retained profits

Prior to the adoption of HKICPA’'s Statement of Standard Accounting
Practice 30 Business Combinations (“SSAP 30”) in 2001, goodwill
arising on acquisition of subsidiaries and associates was eliminated
against consolidated retained profits in the year of acquisition. On
the adoption of HKFRS 3, such goodwill remains eliminated against
consolidated retained profits and is not recognised in the income
statement when all or part of the business to which the goodwill
relates is disposed of or when a cash-generating unit to which the
goodwill relates becomes impaired.
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POLICIES (Continued)
Excess over the cost of business combinations

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of
acquisition of subsidiaries and associates (previously referred to as
negative goodwill), after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
the income statement.

The excess for associates is included in the Group’s share of the
associates’ profits or losses in the period in which the investments
are acquired.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax
assets, financial assets, investment properties, goodwill and disposal
associates classified as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is calculated as the higher
of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case, the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the income statement in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is
any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill and certain financial assets is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of an asset, however not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation), had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the period in
which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

BHEAXS RN

ERARERAMEEAHIEE AERIRE
BRRFEZ B KBE QR REE AR
RAZ R CBERARRE) KEMFGER B
R s R MR -

B QR ZBOEIARERKB B REE
B2 R BNE N B R T -

FERMEE (TEEHE) BE

WETRBRHRRES BN EELETFERE
AR (FE EEHREE SREE REVE-
BE RN BRFHEGE ZBERRRIN Rlgf
AEEZAREHE BEZAINOISBIZEE
SRTELE 1421%)3%1 FERRAERHEERA
(AEEE /%) Mat & WHLEREEMAEE kR
FEMEETH E&’E?ﬁﬂ*tﬁi REMEESN
BERRELRESRA FEUER T AT EIEEE
HEEMBZELR S BAMmAEE-

REEEEREERE L E A Y C 28 - fE
EEA T ARER ERHA R A EER At 2 KRR
BERENERATRENRERENIRE M
BRI IRE T RRIRE TSR EREEERE
ERERR G- RIFEENBHERFAER
B (ENREEEREZEMEEZHBESBER
5I8R) - B AURE R EAS A B E A MR 2 Was R i
B E EARER B R AR k-

EEEREASHHEANEMEEESERZE
EREBEA G TBEFEKAERD 2R - fi
HREMZEFTR A S AT KEEEE-R

PR DA FE B 2 M) MR [B] 2088 2 (i R 3R 58 Bl -
AR BEREEBR GAEREYE
BEES) B BEEREEL NI SNERREE
FEWERZEERDEFREBRZERLT
FZEERREE  FHE (Z“?D(‘%Eﬁ?ﬁ%/ﬁﬁ
) FRIFEE IE U B HERFTEE fﬁ(ﬁﬂ/ﬁt@éﬁ
BREEREZEGHEECABSHBRIEK) B

APREBIERE S AREEHRE 2 amRkp-o



Notes to Financial Statements 817§ 3Rk Z& ki
31 December 2006 —EZ NF+_-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING QAT ESHBECHE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the
future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an
item of property, plant and equipment, and where the cost of the
item can be measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an
additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair
value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying
amount. Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are
dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total
of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset
basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the income statement.
Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the income
statement to the extent of the deficit previously charged. On disposal
of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation
reserve realized in respect of previous valuations is transferred to
retained profits as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation of toll roads is calculated to write off their valuation on a
unit-of-usage basis whereby depreciation is provided based on the
share of traffic volume for a particular period over the total projected
traffic volume through out the periods for which the Group is granted
the rights to operate the roads.

Depreciation of each item of property, plant and equipment other
than toll roads is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost or valuation to its residual value over its estimated useful life.
The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Land and buildings Over the lease terms
Leasehold improvements 20%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10% to 25%

Motor vehicles 9% to 20%

Plant and machinery 10% to 25%
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POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost or valuation of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in the income statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represent buildings under construction,
which are stated at cost less any impairment losses, and are not
depreciated. Cost comprises direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress are reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment or
investment properties when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for property which
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the balance
sheet date.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the income statement in the year in which
they arise.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING QAT ESHBECHE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Investment properties (Continued)

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the income statement in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” up to the date of change in use,
and any difference at that date between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” above. For a transfer from inventories
to investment properties, any difference between the fair value of the
property at that date and its previous carrying amount is recognised
in the income statement. When the Group completes the construction
or development of a self-constructed investment property, any
difference between the fair value of the property at the completion
date and its previous carrying amount is recognised in the income
statement.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at cost less any impairment
losses. Cost includes all costs attributable to such development,
including financing charges. Impairment is assessed by the directors
based on prevailing market prices, on an individual property basis.

Properties under development which have been pre-sold are classified
as properties under development for sale under current assets.

Non-current assets and interests in associates held for sale

Non-current assets and interests in associates are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be
the case, the asset or the interests in associate must be available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are
usual and customary for the sale of such assets or interests in
associates and its sale must be highly probable.

Non-current assets and interests in associates (other than investment
properties, deferred tax assets and financial assets) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair
values less costs to sell.
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POLICIES (Continued)
Completed properties for sale

Completed properties for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined by apportioning of the total land
and development cost attributable to the unsold properties. Net
realisable value is estimated by the directors based on prevailing
market prices, on an individual property basis.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case
of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases are
charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payment under operating leases is initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments
are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease
in property, plant and equipment.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Vehicle licences acquired by the Group is stated at cost less any

impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 15 to 20 years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING QAT ESHBECHE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and
available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. When financial
assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus,
in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly attributable transaction costs. The Group considers whether
a contract contains an embedded derivative when the Group first
becomes a party to it. The embedded derivatives are separated from
the host contract which is not measured at fair value through profit
or loss when the analysis shows that the economic characteristics
and risks of embedded derivatives are not closely related to those of
the host contract.

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets after
initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates
this designation at the balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on
investments held for trading or these financial assets are recognised
in the income statement.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives, the
entire hybrid contract may be designated as a financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss, except where the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear that separation
of the embedded derivative is prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss if the following criteria are met: (i) the
designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or
recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis; (i) the assets
are part of a group of financial assets which are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management strategy; or (iii) the financial asset
contains an embedded derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.
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POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Such assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Amortised cost is calculated taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate and transaction
costs. Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when
the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as
through the amortisation process.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets
in listed and unlisted equity securities that are designated as available
for sale or are not classified in any of the other two categories. After
initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at
fair value, with gains of losses recognised as a separate component
of equity until the investment is derecognised or until the investment
is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss previously reported in equity is included in the income statement.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed and used in estimating fair value, such securities are stated
at cost less any impairment losses.

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised
financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market bid
prices at the close of business at the balance sheet date. For
investments where there is no active market, fair value is determined
using valuation techniques. Such techniques include using recent
arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current market
value of another instrument which is substantially the same; a
discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing models.
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POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and
receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance
account. The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the
income statement.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant,
and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group is
collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or
continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment
of impairment.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement, to the
extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its
amortised cost at the reversal date.

In relation to trade receivables, a provision for impairment is made
when there is objective evidence (such as the probability of insolvency
or significant financial difficulties of the debtor) that the Group will
not be able to collect all of the amounts due under the original terms
of an invoice. The carrying amount of the receivables is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Impaired debts are
derecognised when they are assessed as uncollectible.

TREEME

AEERSHEE RN ST B TRTRKRA A
TREEX—MEREENEELIRRE

DA SERX A FTH BB E

8 FBE BB AYIAR 2 B R MR
FRELRRBEBR BEBBRZEE ZKREE
HEEAARARESRE (TBEMARHIRZARRE
EER) 2RE (RERMEEZRRERMEX (B
VF RS 2 BRANX) 7R 2 =8/ E-
BEZRHENEEZIGEBERBIEERR -
BB 1R B AR I M 2 R R

AEBEAMEE S RBEBRTREE BT
ERBYARERMZSREE BEEBIE
BHFERTELAEEZM 2 S RMEE Mg
EYEEESERTREFEREBN G 22/
BE BWERESL ZEESERENERUGE
RS —AEREE WREBETREN G-
BEETRERN G B EREBRD MRS RE
HRAZEEL T BRENERMER e

A BE R HAR A IR E B R B R A BRI R R
FERERRERELE CEERAH RIBERER
BB RS IR F] T [ - BE IR T RUE B 1E 2 B m R
WaEKER HEEEZRAENMSBBERED
B8R # SH R AN

EEEBTR (PIEF AT EE N EEXER
BEAKRBERE) RAXEEFEERBEERERE
AR U= P 7B SRIE RS - B it e W RR SRV H R
1 FEUR N 2 AR E AT BB B AR B 1E R
B BT IR RT i 23 1 AT [0 s 4% | HEERR o

»
T
m
Z
N
L
m
Z
zZ
<
T
()]
_'
<
m
zZ
_'
C
=
_'
T
O
>
Z
Z
c
>
=
20
£
g
e}
X
_'
N
o
o
(o)}

79



Notes to Financial Statements 817§ 3R = Kiz:
31 December 2006 —EZEXF+-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Q4T ESHBECHME (&)

[n/=3
-
kH_
H:%
©
o
©
AN
I
«
B
I
=
@
ﬁ
B

80

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted
equity instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured has been incurred, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising the
difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the income statement, is transferred from
equity to the income statement. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed through
the income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised where:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

e the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from the asset,
but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form
of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or
purchased option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision)
on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the Group
may repurchase, except in the case of a written put option (including
a cash-settled option or similar provision) on an asset measured at
fair value, where the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement is
limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the
option exercise price.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (including interest-
bearing loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and interest-
bearing loans and borrowings are initially stated at fair value less
directly attributable transaction costs and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation
process.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts in the scope of HKAS 39 are accounted
for as financial liabilities. A financial guarantee contract is recognised
initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial guarantee
contract, except when such contract is recognised at fair value
through profit or loss. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the
amount determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (i) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the income statement.
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POLICIES (Continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the balance sheet date of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from
the passage of time is included in finance costs in the income
statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the income statement, or in equity if it relates to items
that are recognised in the same or a different period directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liabilities arises from goodwill or the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING QAT ESHBECHE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses,
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

e inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Conversely, previously
unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each balance
sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.
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POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which
is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each entity
in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions are initially
recorded using the functional currency rates ruling at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All differences are taken
to the income statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
balance sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company at the
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date and, their income
statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are included in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount
recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING QAT ESHBECHE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,
on the following bases:

(@ income from the sale of properties and industrial and commercial
products, when the significant risk and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group
maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over the goods
and properties sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms;

(c) toll fee income from the operation of toll roads is recognised
when the tolls are received and receivable;

(d) income from the provision of transportation services, when the
transportation services have been rendered;

(e) services income, when the relevant services have been rendered;

(f) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(9) dividend income, when the shareholder’s right to receive payment
has been established.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the balance
sheet, until they have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the
shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.
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POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
(i) controals, is controlled by, or is under common control with,
the Group; (i) has an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;

(c) the party is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or its parent;

(d) the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred
to in (a) or (c);

(e) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power
in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (c) or (d); or

(f) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
the employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related
party of the Group.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less banks overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and from an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, which
are not restricted as to use.
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POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits
Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of
share-based payment transactions, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by the management using the Black-
Scholes model, further details of which are given in note 34. In valuing
equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any performance
conditions, other than conditions linked to the price of the shares of
the Company (“market conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the
date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the
award (the “vesting date”). The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at each balance sheet date until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the income statement for
a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period. If the share
options granted vested immediately, the Group recognised the fair
value in the period in which the options are granted.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a market
condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not
the market condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for any maodification,
which increases the total fair value of the share-based payment
arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured
at the date of modification.
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POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. However, if a
new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in
respect of equity-settled awards before 7 November 2002 and has
applied HKFRS 2 only to equity-settled awards granted on or after 1
January 2005.

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme
except for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions, which are
refunded to the Group when the employee leaves employment prior
to the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme.

Each of the subsidiaries operating in Mainland China participates in
the central pension scheme (the “CPS”) operated by the local
municipal government for all of its staff. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute 8% to 20% of their payroll costs to the CPS. The
contributions are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the CPS.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event previously
causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group has to exercise
judgement in the area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset value or
such event affecting the asset value has not been in existence; (2)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management to determine the level of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could material affect the net present value used
in the impairment test.

Income tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes. Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
carried forward to the extent that it is probable (i.e., more likely than
not) that future taxable profits will be available against which the
unused tax losses can be utilised, based on all available evidence.
Recognition primarily involves judgement regarding the future
performance of the particular legal entity or tax group in which the
deferred tax asset has been recognised. A variety of other factors
are also evaluated in considering whether there is convincing evidence
that it is probable that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets
will ultimately be realised, such as the existence of taxable temporary
differences, tax planning strategies and the periods in which estimated
tax losses can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
and related financial models and budgets are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and to the extent that there is insufficient
convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profits will be available
within the utilisation periods to allow utilisation of the carry forward
tax losses, and that the asset balance will be reduced and charged
to the income statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)
Land appreciation tax

Under the Provisional Regulations on land appreciation tax (“LAT”)
implemented upon the issuance of the Provisional Regulations of the
PRC on 27 January 1995, all gains arising from the transfer of real
estate property in the Mainland China effective from 1 January 1994
are subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on
the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of
properties less deductible expenditures including amortisation of land
use rights, borrowing costs and all property development
expenditures.

The subsidiaries of the Group engaging in property development
business in the Mainland China are subject to land appreciation taxes,
which have been included in the income tax. However, the
implementation of these taxes varies amongst various Mainland China
cities and the Group has not finalised its land appreciation tax returns
with various tax authorities. Accordingly, significant judgement is
required in determining the amount of land appreciation and its related
taxes. The ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises these liabilities based on
management’s best estimates. When the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and provisions of land
appreciation taxes in the period in which such determination is made.

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined that it retains
all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties
which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets held by the Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3 EASEHETRMGE (&)

ESTIMATES (Continued)
Judgements (Continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties (Continued)

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions could be sold separately (or leased out
separately under a finance lease), the Group accounts for the portions
separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the property
is an investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial years are
discussed below.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market
for similar lease terms and other contracts. In the absence of such
information, management determines the amount within a range of
reasonable fair value estimates. In making its judgement, management
considers information from (i) current prices in an active market for
properties of different nature, conditions or locations by reference to
available market information; (i) recent prices of similar properties in
less active markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the date of transactions that occurred at
those prices; and (iii) discounted cash flow projections, based on
reliable estimates of future cash flows, derived from the terms of any
existing lease and other contracts, and (where possible) from external
evidence such as current market rates for similar properties in the
same location and condition, and using discount rates that reflect
current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and
timing of cash flows.

The principal assumptions for the Group’s estimation of the fair value
include those related to current market rents for similar properties in
the same location and condition, appropriate discount rates, expected
future market rents and future maintenance costs.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 December 2006
was HK$3,083,941,000 (2005: HK$2,653,801,000).
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of the Group’s primary
segment reporting basis, by business segment. In determining the
Group’s geographical segments, revenues are attributed to the
segments based on the location of the customers, and assets are
attributed to the segments based on the location of the assets. No
further geographical segment information is presented as over 90%
of the Group’s revenue is derived from customers based in Mainland
China, and over 90% of the Group’s assets are located in Mainland
China.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the
products and services they provide. Each of the Group’s business
segments represents a strategic business unit that offers products
and services which are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of the other business segments. Summary details of the
business segments are as follows:

(@) the property development segment engages in development of
residential, industrial and commercial properties;

(b) the property investment segment invests in residential, industrial
and commercial properties for their rental income potential;

(c) the property management segment engages in the management
of both Group developed properties and non-Group developed
properties;

(d) the transportation services segment consists of the provision of
passenger and freight transportation services, automobile
maintenance and other related services;

(e) the manufacturing segment engages in the manufacture and
sale of industrial and commercial products;

(f) the infrastructure investment segment invests in infrastructure
projects of power generation and toll roads;

(9) the information technology segment engages in the cable
television transmission network and the provision of information
technology services; and

(h) the “others” segment comprises, principally, building
construction and other businesses.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. DEEH (&)
Business segments EX 30k
The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) and certain asset, TREINANEEREZ-_ZTTER_ZTTHTF
liability and expenditure information for the Group’s business TZA=FT—BIEFEEBHEZWA &F (8
segments for the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2005. B)RETEE ABERAZER:
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
BEER FREEY

HBE-BIAE Property Property Property Transportation Infrastructure Infrastructure  Information
Year ended 31 December 2006 +=A=+-ALEE | i services Manufacturing  investment Others Total investment technology Total Consolidated
NERRE  NERE  NXEE  EBEH WE  EERE 2t #BE EBERE EARK ag e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL FiEL FiEn TEL TEL TEL TEL

Segment revenue: AERE:
Sales to customers HEFRP 1,007,376 335,993 358,877 154,475 316,278 18,504 110,351 2,301,854 - - - 2,301,854

Segment results before increase  RAMEAALE
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in fair value of #an

investment properties Pt 47,641 246,851 9,011 25,193 (20,974) 8,361 1,751 687,834 - - - 687,834
Increase in fair value of REME

investment properties AR EEM - 257,739 - - - - - 257,739 - - - 257,739

Segment results after increase ~ REANEAALE

in fair value of Emik

investment properties 2PEEE 417,641 504,590 9,011 25,193 (20,974) 8,361 1,751 945,573 - - - 945,573
Interest income, FISBA-BREMA

dividend income and RARDENRE

unallocated gains, net bkl 185,578 - 185578
Unallocated expenses APERER (122,584) - (122,584)
Finance costs BERK (216,774) - (216,774
Share of profits and losses EEB RN A

of associates BHRER 37,458 6,506 1,262 2,763  (132,461) - - (84,472) - - - (84,472)

Unallocated share of profits ANE L
of associates BE AR 154,706 - 154,706

Profit/{loss) for the year from FRFEREESR

discontinued operations 2/ (BR) - 497241 (23,707) 473,534 473534
Profit before tax BHATER 862,027 473534 1,335,561
Tax BE (197,185) - (197,185
Profit for the year FREF 664,842 473,534 1,138,376
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, s S N =
4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. PEEHR (&)
Business segments (Continued) (858 (&)
b
kH‘ Discontinued
kH‘ Continuing operations operations
© REEK FEEY
o
o HE-ZIAE Property Property Property Transportation Infrastructure  Information Information
S Year ended 31 December 2006 +=A=+—HLFE development investment management services Manuf i hnoll Others Total  technology Consolidated
r"E NEBRE  WERE  WEEE EGRY ®E EERE  EARK it BE  AARH e
El\f_’\ HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E TEL TEL FET TEL TEL TEL TEL FERT TEL TEL TEL
=X Assets and liabilties BERAE
'Hj Segment assets PEEE 3,180,691 3,261,280 75,806 202,447 258,533 3,170,852 - 55,835 10,205,444 - 10,205,444
% Interests in associates RENEER 328,131 169,633 8,666 51,321 96,684 - 178 (1,456) 653,157 - 653,157
5 Unallocated interests RARBE
in associates ARER 1,798,471 - 1,798,471
Interests in an associate PRRRBEREZ
classified as held for sale NGl 3 - 125,845 125,845
Unallocated assets RARAE 5,351,025 - 5351025
Total assets BEES 18,008,097 125,845 18,133,942
Segment liabilities ARERE 1,081,638 186,943 190,715 103,337 85,319 142,367 - 16,720 1,807,039 - 1,807,039
Unallocated liabilties ROEAMR 8,530,127 - 8,530,127
Total liabilities ffERE 10,337,166 - 10,337,166
Other segment information: 5 B&H:
Depreciation & 4,393 6,947 5,961 28,642 15,601 10,731 - 5,255 77,530 - 77,530
Amortisation of vehicle licences [T E 2R 8 - - - 1,807 - - - - 1,807 - 1,807
Write-back impairment of items AR ER
of property, plant and nE BER
equipment recognised HfEEA
in the income statement AERE - - - (1,517) - - - - (1,517) - (1,517)
Increase in fair value REMF
of investment properties AR EEN - (257,739) - - - - - - (257,739) - (257,739)
Capital expenditure BASH 2,116,206 61,711 10,406 15,532 7,422 226 - 6,680 2,218,183 - 2,218,183
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

4. 2EER (&)

Business segments (Continued) XS E (2
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
BEER FREER
HE-TTRE Property Property Property Transportation Infrastructure  Information Infrastructure  Information
Year ended 31 December 2005 +ZA=Ft—HILFE  development  investment management senvices Manufacturing  investment  technology Others Total investment  technology Total Consolidated
NERR NERE NEEE EARB 2 ERRE AAMR ity 2E EERE AAMR #E &a
HK$'000 HKE000 HK$000 HKEO00 HK$000 HKE000 HKS000 HKE000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS000  HK$'000
TEr FTEr  TErT  TEx  TEr  TEx  FEr  TErx  FEr  TEx  FEr  TEr FEx
Segment revenue: FEE:
Sales to customers HETEP 1,798,568 299,643 295594 148540 387,085 = - 74005 3,003,435 = = - 3,003,435
Segment results before increase ~ REMEDALE
in fair value of investment Emaz
properties AREE 565,024 213,176 9,000 21,471 (2,260) - - 4967 811,378 - - - 811,378
Increase in fair value REMZ
of investment properties DAEEM - 128,111 - - - - - - 128,111 - - - 128,111
Segment results after increase RENERAE
in fair value £k
of investment properties ZHE%E 565,024 341,287 9,000 21,471 (2,260) = = 4,967 939,489 - - - 939,489
— —
Interest income, dividend income FISMA R EMAR
and unallocated gains, net FARKEFE 90,187 - 90,187
Unallocated expenses AORER (97,514) - (97514
Finance costs BERAK (178,535) - (178,535
Share of profits and losses EhEEAR
of associates I RER 79,595 20,283 1,044 2,847  (67,589) 105876  (11,346) - 130,710 - - - 130,710
Profit/{loss) for the year from FNFEHEEH
discontinued operations iR/ (BR) - 154,850  (41467) 118,192 113,192
Profit before tax iyl 884,337 113,192 997,529
Tax HE (152,479) - (152,479)
Profit for the year FREF 731,858 113,192 845,050
— — —
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. PEER (&)
Business segments (Continued) XBDE (&)
DEX
-
H HE-ZTHF Property Property Property  Transportation Infrastructure  Information
o Year ended 31 December 2005 TZA=+—RILFE development  investment  management services Manufacturing  investment  technology Others Total
= MEER  MERE  WEERE  E8REB HE  ERRE  EARR Hity g
8 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
= TAT TAT FHL FHL TET TET TAT TAT TAT
P
u\zif Assets and liabilities BERSE
E Segment assets PEEE 1,813,331 2,857,774 59,712 210,092 354,641 18,272 - 52,076 5,365,898
o Interests in associates BENRER 293,954 84,759 7,855 52,300 222,010 2,236,603 147,444 1,695 3,046,620
{QEH Unallocated assets *oEEE 3,656,857
) Total assets BESE 12,069,375
Segment liabilities PEAR 671,135 164,506 163,302 102,784 178,703 1,931 - 21,772 1,294,132
Unallocated liabilties FARAE 4,473,345
Total liabilities AEEH 5,767,477
Other segment information: H#i5E&EH:
Depreciation & 6,328 7,160 5,843 31,883 13,170 - - 4,920 69,304
Amortisation of vehicle licences 528 2 R $4 - - - 2,347 - = = = 2,347
Impairment losses of items of ~ RIRER R
property, plant and Z0E BER
equipement recognised in HfEEE
the income statement ZRE - - - 2,631 1,952 - - 4,583
Increase in fair value of REME
investment properties AR EEM - (128,111) - - - - - - (128,111)
Capital expenditure BATH 823,745 71,464 3,867 38,318 40,717 = = 19,794 997,905
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents proceeds
from the sale of properties, sale of commercial and industrial goods,
toll road income, rental income, management fee income, income
from the provision of transportation services and others.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:
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Group
&
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$°000
FEx FHT
Revenue Wz
Sale of properties HEWE 1,007,376 1,798,568
Sale of commercial and HERENK
industrial goods TXEESD 316,278 387,085
Gross management fee income BEBBIA 358,877 295,594
Gross rental income from KEMERE
investment properties WA #B%8 335,993 299,643
Income from transportation services B AR U A 154,475 148,540
Income from toll roads &= NI PN 18,504 =
Others HAth 110,351 74,005
2,301,854 3,003,435
Other income Hg A
Gross rental income from property, RKEWE -HE MEHE2
plant and equipment e W AR 27,294 23,318
Bank interest income RITH B UA 77,283 71,335
Dividend income from investments: REEFE 2R BWA:
Listed investments FHRE 292 132
Unlisted investments JEEMIRE - 2,115
Interest income from loans receivables BB FR B A 5,087 671
Others =i 63,283 33,938
173,239 131,509
Gains Wz
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME BER
plant and equipment J sz Was 197 -
Fair value gains, net: AR EWNEFRE:
Financial assets at fair value ERBREAAEFEZ
through profit or loss TREE 132,603 -
Gain on disposal of associates ek kNI 2,127 10,787
Exchange gains PE X U a 9,138 5,147
144,065 15,934
Other income and gains H AU A & s 317,304 147,443
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

6. BRTAVEF

AKEZBRBANEMNEHNR, GIA) THIFERE

EE:
2006 2005
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BT FET FHT
Cost of inventories sold HEFERA 693,007 1,371,760
Cost of services provided R AR 75 A AN 284,631 236,631
Auditors’ remuneration % 2N B 5,942 6,013
Depreciation e 15 77,530 69,304
Impairment of trade receivables FEW R FOR (B 6,174 10,752
Write-back impairment of trade receivables & U BR FR {E # @) (11,987) -
Write-down of inventories FEREZ
to net realisable value &35 E - 9,353
Direct operating expenses (including WHREEYE
repairs and maintenance) arising on HEELESH
rental-earning investment properties (BE#ERRE) 61,071 41,710
(Write-back impairment)/impairment of Y% HE REEEE
items of property, plant and equipment 2 CRERE) mE 15 (1,517) 4,583
Loss on disposal of investment properties HEREMEZEE - 3,239
(Gains)/losses on disposal of items of LEVE BERXEER
property, plant and equipment 2z (W) BB (197) 4,856
Minimum lease payments under operating T RIEF 2 EEHA
leases in respect of land and buildings =IEHE 9,141 11,133
Amortisation of vehicle licences * YRER R R g 16 1,807 2,347
Fair value (gains)/losses, net: DREF (MWes) EiE:
Financial assets at fair value BREBREAREE
through profit or loss ZEMERE (132,603) 2,340
Employee benefits expense (excluding EERAMFAX
directors’ remuneration — note 8): (T BEEEEHE —HizEs)
Wages and salaries TERE® 346,108 279,581
Equity-settled share option expenses LA RS 8 57155 B i A e A =2 13,067 7,080
Pension scheme contributions RIRE B 33,812 27,727
Less: Forfeited contributions R 2 3R - =
Net pension scheme contributions** RIRNE T 2B RFEE 33,812 27,727
392,987 314,388
Foreign exchange differences, net HNEE = RHER (9,138) (5,147)
Bank interest income RITH B HA (77,283) (71,335)
Dividend income from investments: BEREWA:
Listed investments KA (292) (132)
Unlisted investments JELEMIRE - (2,115)
Interest income from loans receivables B E FF B U A (5,087) 671)
Gain on disposal of associates B B A Al A (2,127) (10,787)
Gross rental income from REMERS
investment properties WA B8 (335,993) (299,643)
Net rental income from land and buildings T REFFHESHA (22,302) (19,161)
*  The amortisation of vehicle licences for the year is included in “Cost of sales” * ARFEBEABRBEEMAAGRERER 2 [HEKX
on the face of the consolidated income statement. A]BBZAC
** At 31 December 2008, the Group had no forfeited contributions available to o RNTEEX ZA=t—H FAEEWEE R

reduce its contributions to the pension schemes in future years (2005: Nil).
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Notes to Financial Statements 817§ 3Rk Z& ki
31 December 2006 —EZ NF+_-_A=+—H

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BERAK o
%
Group =
rEHE ﬁ
2006 2005 =
HK$’000 HK$’000 ﬁ
Tl FHT g
m
Interest on: M EZ - =
Bank loans wholly repayable HARAFRNBEREE %
within five years RITERA B 250,705 197,305 =
Bank loans wholly repayable RAFEBRBEHEEZ ;U>
over five years RITERA B 28,724 = Z
Other loans H i EA S 1,827 3,289 S
>
Total interest F S 4258 281,256 200,594 %
Less: Interest capitalised RN ) (64,482) (22,059) o
_'
216,774 178,535 =
S
8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEE
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing ANEEREEMRARARVEHIEI61HEZES
Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is BTN T
as follows:
Group
AEH
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F&T
Fees e 1,716 1,645
Other emoluments: HE:
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYA = 7,649 4,929
Employee share option benefits & B iE IR Fl 2= 32,931 9,720
Pension scheme contributions RARRET IR 376 175
40,956 14,824
42,672 16,469
During the year, certain directors were granted share options, in RAFE HETESREAEE 2R EARFA
respect of their services rendered to the Group, under the share option FERR AT B E R AR AE SR E R I IS R R Mt 7
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out in note 34 - BEREZRARNZERER 2 ARBETIE
34 to the financial statements. The fair value of such options, which BTRAEBEE EAFET BRI ARNEEET
has been recognised to the income statement, was determined as WEBREELLMESMERE-

at the date of grant and the amount included in the financial
statements for the current year is included in the above directors’
remuneration disclosures.
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EEMe (&)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIYFHITES
DEX
M
& The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the RNEEENBUIFERNTESHSIT:
Eh; year were as follows:
8
[aV}
T Employee
E share option
= Fees benefits Total
T =
2 =)
{E__ﬁ Hwe B8 AR RE R 2= i
[T\ HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHIT FTHT
2006 —EEREF
Wong Po Yan E=IRR 330 286 616
Wu Wai Chung, Michael R 280 286 566
Li Wai Keung, Ricky (E5R 330 286 616
940 858 1,798
2005 —EERE
Wong Po Yan =IRK 250 180 430
Wu Wai Chung, Michael RizEa 250 180 430
Li Wai Keung, Ricky FER 250 180 430
750 540 1,290
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non- ANEWEEMNEMBYIFRTESZ2HE (ZF
executive directors during the year (2005: Nil). TRE )
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EEM< (&)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (b) BITEBRIFHITES
Salaries,

allowances Employee Pension

and benefits share option scheme
Fees in kind benefits contributions Total

FEORMR EE Birg
ik BYAE BRENS BEEE B

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT

»
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m
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2006 —EERE
Executive directors: HITES:
Hu Aimin HER - 1,224 2,506 63 3,793
Zhang Yijun REH - 1,212 2,255 62 3,529
Zhao Gesheng* HE A - 358 1,432 15 1,805
Xiao Rihai* H H/E* - 483 1,432 19 1,934
Liang Kaiping 25 - 879 1,432 43 2,354
Liu Weijin* B - 446 1,432 23 1,901
Zhang Huagiao* RILHE* - 1,458 8,591 73 10,122
Tam Pinglung* HRE - 508 1,432 45 1,985
Zhao Mingfeng™** ji B - 673 1,682 33 2,388
Xu Ruxin** Rz 108 200 1,181 - 1,489
Zhu Huoyang** RNE™ 108 208 1,181 = 1,497
216 7,649 24,556 376 32,797
Non-executive directors: FEHITES!
Wu Jiesi* RiEE~ 280 - 5,799 - 6,079
Lee Yip Wah, Peter - 280 - 286 - 566
Hu Zuoyuan HIETT = = 1,432 = 1,432
776 7,649 32,073 376 40,874
*  New directors appointed on 11 May 2006 * RIZETERFRA+ - BHEZEZHES
**  Resigned as directors on 11 May 2006 “* R-IETEAFRAT-—BBREZES
**  Resigned as a director on 7 September 2006 = RZEEAFANALARECES
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EEM< (&)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (b) BITEERFHTESE ()
i (Continued)
kH_
kﬁ; Salaries,
§ allowances Employee Pension
E and benefits share option scheme
Sy Fees in kind benefits contributions Total
% F& 2R EE BikE
e e BEYRE BREAR FHBIER k)

o=

H

~

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THET THL THET THT

RYIF

2005 —EERF
Executive directors: HITES:
Hu Aimin HER - 1,250 1,800 58 3,103
Zhang Yijun RELY = 1,235 1,500 41 2,776
Liu Jianhua B2z - 618 1,200 33 1,851
Zhao Mingfeng HERZ - 628 1,200 24 1,852
Liang Kaiping 2R - 619 1,200 24 1,843
Xu Ruxin R 260 350 1,050 - 1,660
Zhu Huoyang KNE 260 229 1,050 - 1,539
520 4,929 9,000 175 14,624
Non-executive directors: FHITES:
Lee Yip Wah, Peter FHE 250 = 180 - 430
Hu Zuoyuan HRYETT 125 = = = 125
895 4,929 9,180 175 15,179
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed RAFER BRI EENESKREREEM
to waive any remuneration during the year. B & 2 2 5k
9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. IEBEHFER
The five highest paid employees during the year included five (2005: AEEzRZRRFEERERAA (ZTTRTF:
five) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 hB)ES ZFEZ MBI LXXHE
above. 8k
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10. TAX 10 B

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group
had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year (2005:
Nil). Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China are calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the locations in which the Group operates,
based on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.

Major subsidiaries of the Group operate in Shenzhen, Mainland China,
which are subject to the corporate income tax rate of 15%.

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”) is levied at progressive rates ranging
from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the
proceeds of sales of properties less deductible expenditures including
amortisation of land use rights, borrowing costs and all property
development expenditures. LAT of HK$60,604,000 is charged to the

AEEWEERBEEEMERTAN - F R
FRYEHREBNEHES (CETRF E) -
o B AR R B A BT B IR IB AN R B 2 8 it
HER MBI EREN TR EIFE-

AEBZTZ2MBRARERBEARERYIEE &
16% B MRS

HRE AR ([ ER ) Z L E
30%ZE60% R #E Tt R AU LB ERNE EME
FT1S sRIBR B 18 T s 6 B B A R AT
EMERBRI L ZANBAS BE_TTRF
+-A=+—HIEFE BEAGARERTNER

consolidated income statements for the year ended 31 December T 32 (EF60,604,0008 T (ZTEZTRF T8
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2006 (2005: Nil). JT) °
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Group: NEFH:

Current — Mainland China BIHA — o B K 119,843 114,114
LAT in Mainland China AR B K £t SR B FR 60,604 =

Deferred Mainland China corporate IERE A B K B 1 PR S
income tax (note 32) (FF7E32) 16,738 38,365
Total tax charge for the year REERIEZ HREE 197,185 152,479
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10. TAX (Continued)

11.

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to profit before
income tax at the statutory income tax rates to the income tax
expense at the Group’s effective income tax rates for the year, and a
reconciliation of applicable rates (i.e, the statutory tax rates) to the
effective tax rates, are as follows:

10 BiE (&)

TXFTEAEER R E 2 EARKRATE A
w2 TS HMIERY IR AN EEAFE 2 HEA
FTSBifE (WEEME) T E 2 TS HAER
2 HAR:

2006 2005
HK$’000 % HK$'000 %
TER TR
Profit before tax (including profit PR 75 A )
from discontinued operations) (BIEEREERM) 1,335,561 997,529
Tax at the domestic rates applicable to  RERANEBA DEF 2
profits in the provinces concerned B EGTE 2 HE 218,433 16.4 154,092 15.4
Higher tax rate for specific provinces REAMORMAER
or local authority Bz Bix (2,504) (0.2) (885) (0.1)
Profits and losses attributable to YN
associates KE#R (35,830) 2.7) (37,097) 3.7)
Incomes not subject to tax BEBMBTHR WA (95,425) (7.1) (23,159) (2.3)
Tax losses not recognised AR HIEEE 23,465 1.8 39,808 4.0
Tax loss utilised BEFAzHIEEE (2,402) (0.2) (1,583) 0.1)
Expenses not deductible for tax RA] R TR 2 X 39,795 3.0 20,392 2.0
Adjustments in respect of current AT AR BN EA R 1R
tax of previous periods fEH AR - - 911 0.1
LAT T RER 60,604 4.5 - =
Tax effect of LAT THRER 2 HIEYE (8,951) (0.7) - -
Tax charge at the Group’s IRARNE BB WX
effective rate Bk 2 18 197,185 14.8 152,479 15.3

The share of tax attributable to associates of approximately
HK$32,134,000 (2005: HK$26,280,000) is included in “Share of
profits and losses of associates” on the face of the consolidated
income statement.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 28 August 2006, the Company entered into a contract to dispose
the entire 55.88% equity interest in a subsidiary, Newton Industrial
Limited (“Newton”). Newton in turn through its subsidiaries holds a
34% equity interest in Shenzhen Mawan Power Co., Ltd. (“Mawan”),
which operates two power plants in Shenzhen, the PRC. The state
authorities have approved this transaction on 24 November 2006.

11

B &N &) FER TR IE %) 532,134,000 7T (Z 2 E
A F 126,280,000 7T) ' EFALRE WK F [FE
B N TR T R EE] A

CEREER

—EERFNAZTNE ARREFYAHNEHE
B & A & Newton Industrial Limited ( [Newton ] )
FT7555.88% %4 -Newtoni& B EL M B A Rl A &
NESEENBR AT ([E5E]) 34%AHE - i 45 /&
EEP BRI £ T R 2 B R - Bl R B “‘%EE’\‘
“EERFT—A-TEBENR ER



Notes to Financial Statements 817§ 3Rk Z& ki
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 1. FRFEEK (&)

The Group has decided to dispose its entire 31.1% interest in
Shenzhen Topway Video Communication Co., Ltd. (“Topway”), an
associate of the Group established in the Mainland China. Topway
engages in the provision of cable TV and other communication
network technology services in Shenzhen. On 22 December 2006,
the transaction has been published for public bidding in Shenzhen
Enterprise Ownership Exchange Centre. As at 31 December 2006,
the final negotiations for the disposal were in progress and the
interests in Topway were classified as held for sale.

Mawan engages in power generation and is a separate business
segment under infrastructure operation. Topway represents the major
information technology operation of the Group, another separate
business segment. The Group has decided to cease its power
generation operation and information technology operation because
it plans to focus its resources on the property development and other
investment opportunities.

The results of Mawan and Topway for the year are presented below:

REERTE HEMFRIITRBEGEABNDERA
Bl ([RE) 2 23B31.1% s - RE A4 = E R
B RBER AL 2 Bt g R A ORI IR B R E
BEREMBRABERERE - R_FTRF+=
A+t =B ZX5BERTERI ST LA
FEERE-R_TERF+_A=1T—"H0 &ZF
HENERRBEMEE BMRRBZ BN ER
Fr{EfF&E-

BEREREXY REREBHMABLLEN
R -RERAKEEZNEMBRER - BRGT
BETERKENEXERREMERERE T &
BEEREAREEREAREER-

BERRBENFAEEZINNAT:

2006 2005

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

h=d F#Ex FHET

Share of profit of Mawan JFEAG 15 78 5 7| 174,255 154,659

Share of loss of Topway B REEE (23,707) (41,467)

Profit of the discontinued operations R B E T m A 150,548 113,192

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary — Newton HEW B A RINewtonz ez 37 322,986 -
Profit before tax from EREEB 2

discontinued operations R H B g ) 473,534 113,192

Tax THIE - =
Profit for the year from discontinued B2

operations & N F 473,534 113,192
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 1. kiFEXHK (&)
The interests in Topway were classified as held for sale as at 31 RZBZEREFTA=1T—H EXEZ#E=RD
B December 2006 as follows: BAFBERE JIRMT:
kH_
8 2006 2005
8 HK$’000 HK$’000
T FET FAT
&
mx Assets BE
g Interests in Topway RRE 2 125,845 -
& N e
= Net assets directly associated HEERBAEETE 125,845 -
5S
The net cash flows incurred from the discontinued operations are EREEBELEZFREeRENT !
as follows:
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Investing activities K"EEH 706,641 223,808
Financing activities & E B (87,012) (98,739)
Net cash inflow FHERE 619,629 125,069
2006 2005
Earnings per share: BRAF:
Basic, from the discontinued operations AR REEFEXETY  HK15.59 centsiE{l HK1.81 cents#lll
Diluted, from the discontinued operations e KRB IFRHERT HK15.12 centsiEAl HK1.81 cents# 1l
The calculations of basic and diluted profit per share amounts from IERFEES 2 BREARREERF 53z T 5 & 18
the discontinued operations are based on: FE:
2006 2005
Profit for the year from FERFEETS
discontinued operations F R A HK$473,534,000/8 T  HK$113,192,000/ 7T
Results attributable to minority interests DBRR IR (HK$76,874,0008 T)  (HK$68,229,0007% 7T)
Profit attributable to ordinary equity [SYNCIR=S &L
holders of the parent from A AEIG
the discontinued operations FERFEE T HK$396,660,0007% T HK$44,963,0005%5 T
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ FIAFFEFRER
in issue during the year used Bz FEANBET
in the basic profit per share calculation T AR N4 9 £ 2,543,566,810 2,482,413,966
Weighted average number of ordinary R E GhkEE
shares used in the diluted profit Bz EER
per share calculation niEFHE 2,624,039,624 2,482,413,966
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12. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE PARENT

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the parent
for the year ended 31 December 2006 includes a profit of
HK$767,325,000 (2005: HK$147,390,000) which has been dealt with
in the financial statements of the Company (note 35(b)).

12,

BRAESZFEARGEEXRR

HE-ZEE+-_A=+—HI-EEFATHE
miF A AELERE R H B 1E767,325,00078 Tk
M (ZZZFHF 147,390,000/ 7T) ERAR R Z
B SRR EE (I5E35(0)) °

13. DIVIDENDS 13. K&
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Interim — HK3.00 cents (2005: HK2.00 cents) A HAR% B — &A% 5@ A% 3.0078 11l
per ordinary share (ZZEZRHF:2.00/8(0) 74,905 49,648
Adjustment to prior year’s final dividend A FERRE 2 % 2,534 =
Proposed final scrip dividend with BORAGEEURAR S
a cash option of HK8.54 cents LATR € W ER 2 FREA AR B
(2005: cash dividend HK11.00 cents) — G E BS54 1L
per ordinary share (ZZEZRF HE/RE11.0081L) 240,952 273,066
Proposed special scrip dividend with IR AT 38 12 ARR AR B 3 BAIR & UREX
a cash option of HK11.45 cents 2RI IR B IR AR 11,4511l
(2005: Nil) per ordinary share (ZZEZRF TEW) 323,056 -
641,447 322,714

The Board of Directors recommended the payment of a final scrip
dividend (with a cash option) of HK8.54 cents (2005: cash dividend
HK11.00 cents) and a special scrip dividend (with a cash option) of
HK11.45 cents (2005: Nil) per ordinary share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2006. The proposed dividends for the year are
subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year,
as used in the basic earnings per share calculation and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

14.

EEeRFINEE T E+-_A=1+—H
LIEFERREUBRA S (AR 2R SR S)
AER854EIN (ZETRAF  IREXE11.00/5
1) AR EFRIARR A S (IRAR 2R £ % 8.
AER11.458 (ZETRF THW) AFE
BERREBHFAARBRRENEERRAFAS L
HEAE o

BRARAERARERAEARLGERER

SREABHIERE A A LBRER B AR
AR SR PR IR BT R BARR (D AT 81
HEE

SRBERF S AT ERARESA AT
P RIS B R B A B 2 BB T B
AEREBTERREE (DR EERES
BRI AR S R R (R AT
SR ERIRT B E ERE ST ERR I
Fi8-
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO B BLAREERSREABLEERER
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (&)
(Continued)
B
& The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share amounts EREARAREERFIZ TISEE:
k&; are based on:
g
I 2006 2005
S Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
= fi i FHT TH7
;;%é Earnings EZF
= Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders ~ FASTEERREKRZEF| 2
2 of the parent, used in the basic earnings B AR EBEERFTEA
per share calculation JE (55 A
From continuing operations KEFFEED 406,946 489,376
From discontinued operations KB EFFEETS 11 396,660 44,963
803,606 534,339
Number of shares
I8 H
2006 2005
Shares i)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FALAETEERREARZEF] 2
in issue during the year used FAEETERR
in the basic earnings per share calculation InREFH & 2,543,566,810 2,482,413,966
Effect of dilution — weighted average number
of ordinary shares: ey —TRiRmETHee:
Share options B R 80,472,814 =

2,624,039,624 2,482,413,966
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y15 B E R R 1 »
T
m
Group RE &
T
m
Land and Land and E
buildings in buildings in Furniture, %
Hong Kong  Mainland China fixtures m
under medium  under medium Leasehold and Motor Plantand  Construction 9'
Toll roads term leases term leases  improvements equipment vehicles machinery in progress Total <
LT u
DinfiiEd  RehEKE —
REERH #E HEWR RARE %
BEAR 2tHREF ZIHRETF ki R RE BERRE EBIE #a 5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 8
TARL TARL TR T TR TR FiEn T TARL >
Z
31 December 2006 225 E+=A=t-H j%
At 31 December 2005 and RZEERE+-A=+-H ;
at 1 January 2006: RRZZZ FE-A—H: %
Cost or valuation KA fEE - 2,086 410,479 4,109 54,647 202,845 154,058 8,180 856,404 @)
Accumulated depreciation :_U|
and impairment 2EMERAE - (30) (8,379) (713) (42,763)  (136,479) (37,190) - (245,548) N
o
Net carrying amount REFE - 2,056 382,100 3,396 11,884 86,372 116,868 8,180 610,856 @
At 1 January 2008, RZZT 5-A—-H
net of accumulated BN R E
depreciation and impairment RAE - 2,056 382,100 3,396 11,884 86,372 116,868 8,180 610,856
Additions RE - - 2,177 9,274 8,710 20,673 7,386 7,399 55,619
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEHBAR
(note 36) (MizE3s) 2,863,516 - - - 3,063 8,998 9,228 - 2,884,805
Disposals e - - (4,500) - (2,252) (4,876) (5,774) = (17,402)
Transfer to investment BRERENE
properties (note 20) (GEZ) - - (6,467) - - - - - (6,467)
Reclassified to properties ENPBAEETNE
under development (note 19) G - - (91,866) - - - - - (91,866)
Write-back impairment A ERE - - (249) - - 1,766 - - 1,517
Depreciation provided
during the year REEMERE (5,488) - (10,628) (1,087) (10,120) (31,884) (18,323) - (77,530)
Exchange realignment I3 A% 55,054 87 12,072 104 774 3,357 4,295 48 75,791
At 31 December 2006, RZZEAFTZAZ+—8H"
net of accumulated NG R E
depreciation and impairment RiAE 2,913,082 2,143 282,639 11,687 12,059 84,406 113,680 15,627 3,435,323
At 31 December 2006: RZZZRE+-A=1—-H:
Cost or valuation KA IEE 2,918,570 2,176 299,109 13,514 58,083 218,986 161,261 15,627 3,687,326
Accumulated depreciation 25tE
and impairment LfE (5,488) (33) (16,470) (1,827) (46,024)  (134,580) (47,581) - (252,009)
Net carrying amount RHEFE 2,913,082 2,143 282,639 11,687 12,059 84,406 113,680 15,627 3,435,323
Analysis of cost or valuation: KASEEDN:
At cost KA 2,918,570 - - 13,514 58,083 218,986 161,261 15,627 3,386,041
At 2006 valuation ZTTREE - 2,176 299,109 - - - - - 301,285
2,918,570 2,176 299,109 13,514 58,083 218,986 161,261 15,627 3,687,326
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15. % -BERRE (&)
Group AEE
b
kH‘ Land and Land and
kH‘ buildings in buildings in Furniture,
© Hong Kong  Mainland China fixtures
8 under medium  under medium Leasehold and Motor Plantand  Construction
AN Toll roads term leases term leases  improvements equipment vehicles machinery in progress Total
= Lt
S My  ReEXE
) RERRE #F HEMR RARE
s BB ZtHRAF ZiHREF 1 4 REfE RE REREG HERIE 1]
= HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin FHL FHL TR T T T TEn Tan
31 December 2005 —EERF+-A=1-H
At 31 December 2004 and R= F+ZA=t-BR
at 1 January 2005: R-FTRE-HF—H:
Cost or valuation RAZRfEE - 2,034 451,137 1,304 49,844 243,868 134,455 7,688 890,330
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment ZHMERAE - (28) (30,011) (130) (36,204)  (137,645) (39,997) - (244,015)
Net carrying amount IREFE - 2,006 421,126 1,174 13,640 106,223 94,458 7,688 646,315
At 1 January 2005,
net of accumulated
depreciation and impairment - 2,006 421,126 1,174 13,640 106,223 94,458 7,688 646,315
Additions - - 24,633 2,776 8,400 24,434 33,591 4,709 98,543
Disposals HE - - (16,538) - (755) (10,014) (1,209) (4,328) (32,840)
Transfer to investment properties ~ ERZ K ENE
(note 20) (Fi#E20) - - (40,079) - - - - - (40,079)
Impairment HE - - - - - (2,631) (1,952) - (4,583)
Depreciation provided
during the year REERERE - - (14,956) (680) (9,859) (33,945) (9,964) - (69,304)
Exchange realignment EH AR - 50 7,914 26 458 2,305 1,940 111 12,804
At 31 December 2005, R-Z2TRF+-A=1+-H"
net of accumulated BHRZHNE
depreciation and impairment LA - 2,056 382,100 3,39 11,884 86,372 116,868 8,180 610,856
At 31 December 2005: RZZTRET-A=1—H:
Cost or valuation KA E - 2,086 410,479 4,109 54,647 202,845 154,058 8,180 856,404
Accumulated depreciation 2iE
and impairment RAE - (30) (28,379) (713) (42,763) (136,473) (37,190) - (245,548)
Net carrying amount REFE - 2,056 382,100 3,39 11,884 86,372 116,868 8,180 610,856
Analysis of cost or valuation: BASEEDIN:
At cost KA = 52 246,177 4,109 54,647 202,845 154,058 8,180 690,068
At 1997 valuation —“ANEEREE - 2,034 164,302 - - - - - 166,336
- 2,086 410,479 4,109 54,647 222,845 154,058 8,180 856,404
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15. WE-BERRE (&)

The Group’s land and buildings were revalued at 31 December 2006
by Greater China Appraisal Ltd, an independent firm of professionally
qualified property valuers. These land and buildings were revalued
at their open market values based on their existing use.

Had these land and buildings been carried at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation, their carrying amounts would have been
approximately HK$230,350,000 (2005: HK$113,000,000). At 31
December 20086, certain of the Group’s land and buildings with a
net book value of approximately HK$5,730,000 (2005:
HK$2,432,000) and the ownership of Jingdong Expressway (a toll
road with the net book value of approximately HK$2,913,082,000
(2005: Nil)), were pledged to secure bank loans (note 30).

AEBZETLHEETFER-_TTRF+ A
=+t BEARBLEXRAERMEMEMEENE
BRARETEMR ZFLWREFTIREAR
MEEERERE Z RGETER-

BRANZ 5 £ it MIEFIRE 2 A AR R T E 5
B HERM{EE # /5%230,350,0008 T (—2F
FF:118,000,00087L) - R=FEF+=-_A=
+— B A&E 2 IR REFE 45,730,000/ 7T
(ZZEZRF:2,432,000870) 2 & T L RIEF
UEARSRAKAE IRESRAKERDF
E%)752,913,082,0008 T (ZEZERF T
T0) ) ERIRITE R Z &R (M5E30) »

Furniture
Leasehold and Motor
Company improvements fixtures vehicles Total
AT HEWERB HRREE RE M
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET
31 December 2006 —EERF+=ZA=1+—H
At 1 January 2006, net of RZZZERF—A—H"
accumulated depreciation KM EFTINE 593 513 1,105 2,211
Additions NE = 448 583 1,031
Cost of disposals HERA - (110) (867) 977)
Depreciation written back
on disposal HERETE - 110 867 977
Depreciation provided REEHE
during the year B (118) (197) (426) (741)
At 31 December 2008, net of RZEERF+A=+—8"
accumulated depreciation EMNREFTINE 475 764 1,262 2,501
At 31 December 2006: RZZERF+ZA=+—8:
Cost B AR 593 1,133 2,584 4,310
Accumulated depreciation 2FNE (118) (369) (1,322) (1,809)
Net carrying amount REHE 475 764 1,262 2,501
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15. % -BERRE (&)
Furniture
B Leasehold and Motor
& Company improvements fixtures vehicles Total
© ART AENEEE  SAREE mE T
S HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E FHET FHT FHET FHEIT
S
= 31 December 2005 —EERE+-HA=+—H
s
= .
£ At 1 January 2006: R-_FTHAF—A—H
= Cost (DN - 623 4,225 4,848
2 Accumulated depreciation ZEHE - (178) (2,449) (2,627)
Net carrying amount HREFE - 445 1,776 2,221
At 1 January 2005, net of R-_ZEZHE—F—H"
accumulated depreciation KR 2T E - 445 1,776 2,221
Additions NE 593 209 - 802
Cost of disposals HEK A - (37) (1,356) (1,393)
Depreciation written back
on disposal HERETE - 37 1,356 1,393
Depreciation provided REFEHE
during the year i = (141) (671) (812)
At 31 December 2005, net of R-ZZEZERFE+-_A=+—8"
accumulated depreciation KR BT E 593 513 1,105 2,211
At 31 December 2005 and RZZEZTHRFE+ZA=+—HBEK
at 1 January 2006: RZZEEF—A—H:
Cost B 593 795 2,868 4,256
Accumulated depreciation 2FE - (282) (1,763) (2,045)
Net carrying amount RHEFE 593 513 1,105 2,211
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B EE o
%
HK$'000 <
Group AEHE T T é
Vehicle licences YTEHE AR ?
m
()]
31 December 2006 —EEAE+=-A=+—-H 2
m
z
Cost at 1 January 20086, net of REZZFZERNF—A—HZRA -
accumulated amortisation RENER Rt 37,583 Z
Additions RE 784 @
Amortisation provided during the year NS E RS (1,807) >
Exchange realignment B 5, 3 & 1,404 %
c
>
At 31 December 2006, net of R-BEANFE+=-A=+—8" 5
accumulated amortisation BNBRRTEE 37,964 il
O
At 31 December 2006: R-BEEXFE+=-A=+—H: 3
Cost B AR 59,681 =
Accumulated amortisation RET#E (21,717) <
Net carrying amount R FE 37,964
31 December 2005 —EERF+-_A=+—H
At 1 January 2005: R=ZZETERF—H—A:
Cost B 45,160
Accumulated amortisation RET#E (16,481)
Net carrying amount R FE 28,679
Cost at 1 January 2005, net of R-ZETERF—A—HZHA:
accumulated amortisation LR R 5T 5 28,679
Additions = 10,617
Amortisation provided during the year NS SH B (2,347)
Exchange realignment M H 38 & 634
At 31 December 2005, net of RZZBEZERF+_A=+—8"
accumulated amortisation KHBR 2T SH 37,583
At 31 December 2005: RZZBEZRAF+-_A=+—8:
Cost B 56,776
Accumulated amortisation RETHEE (19,193)
Net carrying amount BREFE 37,583
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17. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENT 17. BB L ALK\
Group
I REE
Lo 2006 2005
ktug HK$’000 HK$’000
8 FHR THR
E Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEREE 3,747 -
= Addition during the year REFRE - 3,747
ig Exchange realignment b H A% 141 -
i . _
= Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—BZKHE 3,888 3,747
BK Current portion included in other receivables 5t A E fth i U BE 3% 2 BN EA &F 5 (85) =
Non-current portion JEENEREL 3,803 3,747
The leasehold land is held under a medium term lease and is situated MHE T AR EAFR 4035 8 - A i B KB
in Mainland China.
18. GOODWILL 18. &
2006
HK$’000
Group AEM TR
Cost at 1 January 2006, net of RZZEERF—A—B2ZRA
accumulated impairment LR RETRVE -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36) W g H B A A (FiT+E36) 195,932
Impairment during the year REEZRE -
Cost and carrying amount at 31 December 2006 REZBERNF+ZA=+—HZRARKRE 195,932
Impairment testing of goodwill EMERENR
Goodwill acquired through business combination has been allocated RBRHESMHMEBSERE S REE L SR
to the infrastructure (toll road) division, which is a separate segment, HEE (B AR EBETRE R
for impairment testing.
The recoverable amount of the infrastructure (toll road) division has HiE (RBQRK) 2302 Ak EISEEEZRIE SR
been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow ERABREZ AFHRANGEEERARERE
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period G E v FREEEE-REREBAERZ
approved by senior management. The discount rate applied to the PIREE12% °
cash flow projections is 12%.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the EIEABRE BEEEESEMREZE
key assumptions on which the recoverable amounts of goodwill is ZHRRLHECEEEE T2 5| BURAER

based would not cause the carrying amounts to exceed its iBHE A Bl 2 EE
recoverable amounts.
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19. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 19. BEPWE o

s

Group =

KEE i

2006 2005 =

HK$’000 HK$’000 =

FB T THT 2

m

Land in Mainland China held under VA AR HA AR 497 P B K =

medium term leases, at cost: FEH 2 T iR AN %

At beginning of year F7) 925,806 648,689 =

Additions NE 1,403,910 418,414 )U>

Transfer to properties under BB EEREA =

development for sale Xk ES (607,206) (129,276) =

Reclassified from property, BYE BER 5

plant and equipment (note 15) FEEHRHE (MFE15) 91,866 - g

Disposals = - (26,356) %

Exchange realignment bE i S 34,591 14,335 N

o

At 31 December m+=-A=+—8 1,848,967 925,806 .

Development expenditure, at cost: B S AR A
At beginning of year 1 143,742 256,020
Additions =S 605,438 398,554
Transfer to properties under ERES RSP
development for sale fridm s (320,868) (516,489)
Exchange realignment ME 5 AR 11,106 5,657
At 31 December R+=A=+—~H 439,418 143,742
2,288,385 1,069,548
At 31 December 2006, the Group’s properties under development R-EZERF+_A=+—H AEEEREEFE

with a net book value of approximately HK$122,737,000 (2005:
HK$68,310,000) were pledged to secure bank loans granted to the

Group (note 30).

AR (HHEE30) ©

%9 /122,737,000/ 7T (ZZEZ FH £ :68,310,000
BIL) CBEEFYECRERTAEEZRITE
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20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 20. REW
Group
I REE
Lo 2006 2005
kg HK$000 HK$'000
S FER FAT
E Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HZEREE 2,653,801 2,357,094
= Transfer from property, ERBEME BERZE
g plant and equipment (note 15) (FFzE15) 6,467 40,079
fﬁ Additions VNS 60,566 68,029
= Net profit from a fair value adjustment NREFE 2 EF 257,739 128,111
2 Reclassified from completed BRERKZHEEMEEHHE
properties for sale (note 25) (FfzE25) 6,391 45,005
Disposals HE - (36,698)
Exchange realignment b H AR 98,977 52,181
Carrying amount at 31 December A =t+—HBZzEkEE 3,083,941 2,653,801

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Mainland China
and are held under a medium term lease.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31 December
2006 by Greater China Appraisal Ltd., an independent firm of
professionally qualified property valuers, at approximately
HK$3,083,941,000 on an open market, existing use basis. The
investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 38(i) to
the financial statements. The net surplus arising on revaluation was
credited to the consolidated income statement.

At 31 December 2006, none of the Group’s investment properties
was pledged to secure bank loans granted to the Group (2005:
HK$33,628,000) (note 30).

21. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

AEE 2 REYHEM T BRI IAT HIEL
KB

REEZREMEER =TT F+=_A=1+—
BB EEYEGHEMEETEERQNZA
F % B R 2 E2EEH 5493,083,941,000
IR AMENCERNEATE=7 B
DEH PTG HRERMIFESS() o EfHBRFEDT AL
Alass R

R-ZERE+_A=+—08 KEELEKHT
TR EWEEENEBFTERITERZER
—E T F 4 :33,628,000/ 7T ) (MT»:ESO) °

21. ff B~ A e

Company
b /N

2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
Unlisted shares, at cost JE ET D FRAK AR 1,667,351 1,746,719
Due from subsidiaries* NN E O 1,210,735 1,039,960
2,878,086 2,786,679

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and have no fixed repayment
date. Except for the amounts due from subsidiaries of HK$949,545,710 (2005:
HK$774,064,604) which are interest-free, the remaining balance of
HK$261,189,751 (2005: HK$265,894,981) bears interest at rates ranging from
3% to 7.75% (2005: 3% to 7.75%) per annum.

Y REMEARZFRAEER WEEEERA R

UK BARZ949,545, 7108 L (ZET R
F:774,064,604F ) R ERIBELI 8458
261,189,751 7T (Z T T F 4F : 265,894,981 7T) 1%
BFINET.75% (ZEZTRF 3% ZE7.75%) st EF
B o

Sy
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21. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries classified under current assets/
liabilities are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand

or within one year.

The carrying amounts due from subsidiaries approximate to their fair

values.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

21. B2 R e (

B, ENKHBRARREBESBARBEE, &
-

& REER

ZERBMBARASREZ FEEREQAER
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Place of Nominal value of Percentage of
incorporation/ issued and fully equity interest
registration paid-up capital/ attributable to
Name of subsidiaries and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
B/ AT BERTRBERE AR
] PR RigEh AMERHEE REEZEA L TEER
2006 2005
Shum Yip Holdings (Shenzhen) Mainland China HK$430,320,000 100 100 Property development
Co., Ltd. (Note ¢)
REEE (R BRAR (K zke) hEARE 430,320,000/ 70 NEER
Shum Yip Centre Development (Shenzhen) Mainland China HK$40,000,000 100 100 Property development
Co., Ltd. (Notes a & d)
REROER ORI BRAA (Mitakd) REARE 40,000,0007%7¢ NEER
Shenzhen Shenkong Industrial Mainland China RMB95,500,000 80 80 Provision of transportation
(Group) Co., Ltd. (Note e) services
RIREES (58) BR AR (e REARE AR #95,500,00070 REEHRS
Shenzhen Shenkong Taxi Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB13,780,000 80 80 Vehicle rentals
(Notes a & d)
RYTRBSEHBERAR (Ftakd) REARE AR#13,780,0007C RERE
Shenzhen Ganglong Transportation Mainland China RMB10,000,000 80 80 Provision of transportation
Industrial Co., Ltd. (Notes a & d) services
ATt EREXERAR (fZakd) REARE AE#10,000,00070 REEHRS
Shenzhen Terra (Holdings) Co., Ltd. (Note e) Mainland China RMB200,000,000 51 51 Property development
RYIRA (RE) RIDBR A (Hiske) hEIRE AR #200,000,0007T NEER
Shenzhen Terra Aluminum Alloy Works Mainland China RMB10,000,000 49 49 Aluminum alloy engineering
Co., Ltd. (Notes a & d)
RINTRABELIRERAR (Hitakd  FEKRE AR #10,000,00070 EEETE
Shenzhen Terra Property Management Mainland China RMB5,060,000 51 51 Property management
Service Co., Ltd. (Notes a & d)
ANTRANEERRBBERAR (Mztakd) EIARE AR #5,060,0007T NEER
Shenzhen Shenkong Winglee Cross Mainland China RMB20,000,000 40 40 Provision of cross-border bus
Border Bus Co., Ltd. (Notes a, b &¢€) services and vehicle repairs
RIRERNEBEERAR (Mifa bke) HEKAE AR #:20,000,00070 REEBELIRBERAEZLES
Shenzhen Shum Yip Logistics Group Mainland China RMB160,764,662 51 51 Operation of warehouses and
Holding Co., Ltd. (Notes e & h) property development
RIREDREARAERAR (Hitekh) HEKRE AR #160,764,6627C RERRRMERR
Shenzhen Pengji (Holdings) Company Mainland China RMB231,911,337 100 100 Property investment and
Limited (Note c) development
AN (RB) FRAR (e hEIRE AR%231,911,3377T NERERER
Shenzhen PJLD Securities Products Mainland China RMB75,000,000 63.46 63.46 Manufacturing of security
Co., Ltd. (Notes a & d) products
RYEELZHRHBERAR (HEakd) hEIRE AR #75,000,00070 BERER
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21. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

21. B D R MR ()

Place of Nominal value of Percentage of
incorporation/ issued and fully equity interest
registration paid-up capital/ attributable to
Name of subsidiaries and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
B/ R A ERTRBERE/ ARREEZ
i 2 B & 78 REEHH HEMEREE RABSEAL TEEK
2006 2005
Shenzhen Pengji Property Management Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100 100 Property management
Services Limited (Notes a & d)
RITEENFERRBERDA (MiFakd) HEIARE AR #20,000,0007T NEER
Huizhou Dayawan Shenkong Sanwei Mainland China RMB10,000,000 64 64 Provision of transportation
Transportation Industrial Limited services
s RE AR AK%10,000,0007C REEBHRG
GEERE)
Shenzhen Shum Yip Steel Centre Limited Mainland China RMB19,920,000 100 100 Manufacturing of steel products
(Notes a & €)
R FELLBERAR (fizEake) AR AR #19,920,0007C HETSER
Shenzhen Pengsheng Property Industrial Mainland China RMB45,000,000 50 50 Property investment and
Company Limited (Notes a, b & €) development
ABEEEXERAR (Ma - bke) A AR #45,000,0007T NERERER
Shenzhen Wondershine Residence Mainland China RMB7,114,288 100 100 Property management
Company Limited (Notes a & d)
R BEREFERAR (fiEakd) A ARH7,114,2887C NEER
Shum Yip Investment (Shenzhen) Mainland China RMB222,438,074 100 100 Investment holding
Co., Ltd. (Note ¢)
REER ORI BR AR (Fizc) F A AR#222,438,0747T REER
Hubei Shumyip Huayin Traffic Development Mainland China RMB110,000,000 100 - Provision of investment and
Co., Ltd. (Notes a, d &) management services of
toll roads
HILREERTBRLERAR (Mita  dikf) REKAE AE#110,000,0007 REWENRIRERERRSB
Newton Industrial Limited (Note g) BVI US$34 - 55.88 Investment holding
Newton Industrial Limited (fi 7 g) KBRAHS 34ETT REZR

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital outstanding as at 31
December 2006.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

REIZEXRF+-_A=+—H SHEBRRHE
ERAREREEER

NEREERBUNFEXEBNIEZERA
KAEEEEFE 2B/ D 2 A ARINE AT
FE-EERR JHEMHBARFEREHE
(R N
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21. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 2. B AR ER (&)

Shenzhen Shum Yip Logistics Group Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Shum Yip Logistics”),
the shareholders of Shum Yip Logistics have entered into a Split Agreement
to divide and allocate all the assets and liabilities of Shum Yip Logistics among

wn
T
]
Notes: B o - =
T
2
Indirectly held by the Company a. BEAQAEMESEE =
<
A
The Company has control of the boards of directors of these entities and b. AARHZEREFTEERGHIRE WZERWESR 2
therefore these entities are regarded as subsidiaries of the Company. /NG Pl 5= NETE o
_'
. . . —
Established in the Mainland China as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise c. RPBKEKLAINEBERE <
g
Established in the Mainland China as a domestic enterprise with limited liability d. RPEBKEKZABEAGREFLSE >
Z
&
Established in the Mainland China as a co-operative joint venture enterprise e. RPBKERILAEIELERE =
2
During the year, the Group acquired Hubei Shumyip Huayin Traffic Development . FRAIEEEBIUF="FEMEFSEREARA 8
Co., Ltd. (previously named as Hubei Huayin Traffic Development Co., Ltd.), AU EE A R EER B ERA A (AIFEAILE :_U|
from Xiamen Dongfang Jinlong Investment Co., Ltd., an independent third RZBABARATF) - B BIZWIE 2 s IBE R I %55 5
S
party. Further details of this acquisition are included in note 36 to the financial =M FES6e o
statements.
During the year, the Group disposed Newton Industrial Limited. Further details g. FRAEE T ENewton Industrial Limited ° & Bz H
of this disposal are included in note 37 to the financial statements. & 2 HBERNI G HRERMN 37 o
On 11 December 2006, in view of the expiry of the term of business of h. RZZEERE+-A+—B B8R FINFEDRER

RHBRAR (DRFEDR]) & ZERER RFEY
MERBR AL E RREZEAEAREDRAE
BERBE-FAEDREFRASAR HEE ([BE])

themselves. Shum Yip Logistics is currently 51%-owned by the Company, ERIN=nhHEESRNEES51% - 2.4734% %
2.4734% owned by its employees (the “Employees”) and 46.5266%-owned 46.5266% IR IED M i RFEDRIIBEER

by three other PRC entities. Pursuant to the Split Agreement, all assets and
liabilities of Shum Yip Logistics will be divided among its shareholders in
proportion to their shareholdings in Shum Yip Logistics. The Company and
the Employees have agreed to form a new joint venture (to be 95.3745%-
owned by the Company) to hold the assets of Shum Yip Logistics allocated to
them. The Company will cease to have any interest in Shum Yip Logistics
upon the completion of the Split Agreement. The transaction has been
approved by the Company’s extraordinary general meeting held on 9 February
2007.

B ERIRE ARRFTRER 3 W) AR M LE 1l 2 BE 7 AR 3R
AARREERMBERLFAENCE (KRAHESE
95.3745% %) AR B R EES RN AEMREE
TR DM ik AR R T EREEREYT E
ZRFENRZTTLE-ANBBITZAARRRE
BIRE FREH -
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22 HE AR R

Group Company
oS rEH P NN
Lo 2006 2005 2006 2005
% HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
S F#ExT FHIT FExT T
= N .
'& Unlisted shares, at cost FE LR - AR - — 88,053 88,053
i Share of net assets 15 & EFE 2,534,843 3,027,489 105,744 -
g Goodwil on acquisition (note a)  WREE 4 v &
£ (Fff #Fa) 17,356 - 17,356 -
E Loans from associates BN R4 T 2B R (4,890) (7,999) = =
2 Loans to associates LETHERRIZER 30,164 27,130 = =
2,577,473 3,046,620 211,153 88,053
Interests in an associate PERREREZ
classified as held for sale N
(note 11) (PfF7E11) (125,845) - (50,221) -
2,451,628 3,046,620 160,932 88,053
Market value of listed shares R HE 2,115,535 1,431,478 - -
The loans from/to associates are unsecured, interest-free and have BENRFGT S THERRZERAER
no fixed repayment date. The carrying amounts of these loans Hes BERTEEHN ZSEREAE
approximate to their fair values. BERNARERE-
(@) Goodwill on acquisition (a) WBEEZEHE
On 19 October 2006, the Company entered into an agreement REZZEZERNFTATNEB NAAREI B
to purchase (i) the convertible bonds issued by Coastal Greenland W) EZEREARAR (DEE&FER
Limited (“Coastal Greenland”) at a consideration of B ]) 2172 AR ES - B &511,024,000

HK$511,024,000 (note 24(a)); (i) the shares representing BT (H5E24(a) (i BRERER-Z2F

approximately 7.32% of the issued share capital of Coastal
Greenland as at 19 October 2006 at a consideration of
HK$145,800,000. Upon completion and assuming that there is
exercise in full of the conversion rights attached to the convertible
bonds, the convertible bonds would be converted into
443,862,857 Coastal Greenland shares, representing
approximately 16.7% of the enlarged issued share capital of
Coastal Greenland, and together with the purchased shares, in
the aggregate would represent approximately 22.80% of the
enlarged share capital of Coastal Greenland, assuming there were
be no change to the issued share capital of Coastal Greenland
between the date of the purchase agreement and the date of
conversion of the convertible bonds other than such conversion.

Considering all the facts and circumstances that affect potential
voting rights in convertible bonds, the Company has significant
influence in Coastal Greenland and the investment in 7.32% of
the shares of Coastal Greenland is accounted for as interests in
an associate.

ANEFT AT NBEETRAF47.32%2 1%
15+ .18 & 145,800,0007% 7T ° 52 5k B I7 R 3%
2 ET{E AR E P RN - AT R (E
518 5 5443,862,857 B G 4% B R B
B EEERERBELERNE BITRAL
16.7% ERIFTRIBR D 184 RN 8 ER
B 2 &R B BT AN4722.80% (BR&F% B
BRI R E e B B R AT IR AR E 5 A
BB BN ERE 2 EITIRAN &
F) o

ERAREZENRREFEERZRZME
EENRBERAAARS I ABFEREEEX
2 LGN iﬁ‘@%ﬁ?.ez%ﬂ%’ﬁz&ﬁ{’ﬁ
R E N R S BR
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(a) Goodwill on acquisition (Continued)

22.

BEATER (8)

() WBEEzHE (&)

w
T
m
z
N
T
Z
2006 =
HK$’000 ﬁ
FTHT 4
5
Cost at 1 January 2006, net of RZZEZERF—A—BHRA Z
accumulated impairment B RERE - =
Acquisition of an associate U s — kBt A A 17,356 =
Impairment during the year FRRIE - ;U>
z
Cost and carrying amount W-ZEEXE+-_A=+—Hz2 z
at 31 December 2006 AN R B E (B 17,356 =
%
Particulars of the principal associates are as follows: FEBERRFEOT o
:_D|
N
Nominal value =
Place of of issued and o
establishment/ fully paid-up Percentage of ownership
Business incorporation  capital/registered interest attributable to
Name of associates structure and operations capital the Group Principal activities
ERTR
B/ R AL I BRRE/ AEBEEZ
BEARAR EBER REEHH HMEREE REEZEDL TEEK
2006 2005
Road King Infrastructure Ltd. Corporate Bermuda HK$69,008,000 24.07 24.72 Provision of investment and
(“Road King”) * management of toll roads,
and property development
BRYERBERAR ([HD])~ A BRE 69,008,000 70 REKBARRERER
ROEERE
Shenzhen Tianan Cyber Park Corporate Mainland China US$18,000,000 25.5 25.5 Property investment
Co., Ltd. and development
RRYBEHERAR NGl RE AR 18,000,000 70 NERBRER
Shenzhen Mawan Power Co., Ltd. Corporate Mainland China  RMB560,000,000 - 19 Power generation
(“Mawan”) **
RNGEENERAR ([15E])> 2AF B A RE A K #560,000,0007T e
Shenzhen Topway Video Corporate Mainland China ~ RMB200,000,000 31.1 31.1 Provision of cable TV and other
Communication Co., Ltd. communication network
technology services
RYTRBREAERAR NG| F A RE AR #200,000,0007 REEGIRBER
Hit s BT PR
Shenzhen SEG-CNEDC Color Corporate Mainland China RMB300,000,000 26.76 26.76 Investment holding
Display Device Corp.
AITERREYEERRERAR A HEARE AR #300,000,0007 RERK
Shenzhen Gaofa Investment Corporate Mainland China RMB309,200,000 29 29 Property development
Holding Ltd. and investment
AEEREERAT NG H A RE AR #309,200,0007 NEFRRKE
Coastal Greenland Limited Corporate Bermuda HK$221,290,000 7.32 - Property development
and investment
HERERRARAR A BRE 221,290,000/ 7T NEERRKRE

Except for Coastal Greenland Limited which is audited by Ernst &
Young, Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong, none of the other
associates are audited by Ernst & Young, Certified Public
Accountants, Hong Kong or other Ernst & Young International

member firms.

BaEReRxBERATREERESFAI LK
SRRV B AEZIN L AR R R IR
ERUEGFTEZOK G AN E TN LK EFTRD
EBHBRE R AR MEZ.
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 22 HiENTEIRER (B)

* Road King is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and the * B IRBEREAMK 2 BR AR EZREE0.10
s ordinary shares with a nominal value of HK$0.10 each are listed on the Main BITEBREREHARZMER AR ER B
s Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The principal location of o EEEEM B R B AR
EH.S Road King’s business is Mainland China.
(@]
(@]
« **  Mawan is indirectly held by Newton Industrial Limited, a 55.88% owned = IEEBRAND AR 55.88% m I N FERHE 2 EA
E subsidiary of the Company, which was disposed during the year (note 11). ANewton Industrial Limited (Fi{5£11) B A -
o X \
ir The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the opinion N EREESRREANFEEEBNEETE A
:% of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed RAEBEEFEZEABO ZAEEETH
i a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of NGB -ERRE FIEEAEE AR FEHE
= A S A e
BK other associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result in BERBR TR

particulars of excessive length.

All the above associates have been accounted for using the equity AT A N R E M SRR N FE R A
method in these financial statements, except for Topway, which was ETEZE BRABIZBRE B IEREELE
classified as interests in an associate held for sale during the year in SIRNFA DRI ERFE 2 E R mlEm A
accordance with HKFRS 5 (note 11). GEIRDE
The following is the summarised financial information of all associates: FIBEE N2 EERBEENT:
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Assets EE 25,043,788 15,373,423
Liabilities =R 14,651,122 5,185,136
Revenue KA 3,174,731 5,035,696
Profit g ) 255,710 553,612

23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS 23. EWA IR RFAIA

The amounts due from minority shareholders as at 31 December REZZERF+_A=1+—HZRRDERRERK
2006 are unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one year. HAEER 28RN —FRNEE
The carrying amounts of amounts due from minority shareholders WD ERRRIE 2 REEEE A R ERE-

approximate to their fair values.

24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 24, JHEERE
Group Company
TEH AT
2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FHTT FHxT FiIT
At fair value: BARE:
Listed equity investments EFBEAREZ
in Mainland China EEmERE 31,550 23,072 - =
Unlisted equity investments EFBEAEZ
in Mainland China ELETRERERE 18,329 18,178 1,720 1,720
Investment in convertible AR ESREE
bonds (note a) (Mf5Ea) 360,973 = 360,973 =
410,852 41,250 362,693 1,720
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24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (Continued)

During the year, the net gain of the Group’s listed and unlisted equity
investments recognised directly in equity amounted to HK$8,758,000
(2005: HK$2,280,000).

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices. The fair values of unlisted equity investments have
been estimated using a valuation technique based on assumptions
that are not supported by observable market prices or rates. The
directors believe that the estimated fair values resulting from the
valuation technique, which are recorded in the consolidated balance
sheet, and the related changes in fair values, which are recorded in
the consolidated equity, are reasonable, and that they were the most
appropriate values at the balance sheet date.

Note:

(a)

Investment in convertible bonds

On 19 October 2006, the Company purchased convertible bonds with a
nominal value of US$40,000,000 issued by Coastal Greenland on 7 June 2006
at a total consideration of US$65,600,000 (equivalent to HK$511,024,000).
The bonds are convertible into ordinary shares of Coastal Greenland in whole
or in part at any time from the issue date to the close of business on 30
December 2009 at the conversion price of HK$0.70 per share, subject to
adjustments upon certain events that has a dilutive or concentrative effect on
the value of the Coastal Greenland’s shares. The bonds are redeemable at a
price equal to 145% of the principal amount on 30 December 2009, the maturity
date. The bonds carry interest at a rate of 4.75% per annum, which is payable
half-yearly in arrears on 30 June and 30 December. The effective interest rate
of the convertible bonds is 10.90% per annum.

The investment in convertible bonds comprises a non-derivative host contract
and an embedded derivative, i.e. the equity conversion option. An embedded
derivative whose economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to
the economic characteristics and risk of the host contract and which meets
the definition of a derivative, is separated from the host contract and accounted

for as a derivative.

In accordance with HKAS 39, the host contract of the Company’s investment
in the convertible bonds is classified as the available-for-sale investments
amounted to HK$360,973,000 as at 31 December 2006. The fair value of the
host contract was estimated using an equivalent market interest rate for a
similar bond without a conversion option at the year end. The embedded
derivative of the Company’s investment in the convertible bonds is classified
as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss, amounted to
HK$302,158,000 as at 31 December 2006 (note 28). The fair value of the
embedded derivative was estimated by Greater China Appraisal Ltd., an
independent firm of professional qualified valuers, using the Monte Carlo
Simulation model, taking into account of the terms and conditions upon which
the option was granted. The fair value gain of HK$147,330,000 was recorded
in the consolidated income statement.

24, JHEERE (&)

FN HERESTERZASE LM RIELT
RS IR E 2 W ek /F585£8,758,0008 T (= E =
F1 42,280,000 7T) ©

tm@gx'

tRE 2 AR ERTERNE

LS

o JE LT
AR I AT BRI E L
Ii%‘ﬁz{ﬁj“ XA ERIMER - EFRE A
ERffE 2 2B GFARREERER) kA
REREES Gt ARE#ED) 81 BANGEHE
BrREEfE.

G2
(@) TREBESRE

R=ZFTETXE+ATAA AARNABER
{865,600,000% 7 (15 #511,024,0007% 7T ) Y B
Coastal Greenlandi® —ZZ T /XG5 At BFT&1THE
40,000,000 7T 2 AR AR (E 5 o Al AR & 55 AT R B AT
HBZ-_ZThF+ A=+ HEEREARARRE
R R AR EFAR0.7074 T 2 #D 3k 80 » K. # A Coastal
Greenland 2 & 8 % - M % (8 sk & B & B Coastal
GreenlandiR 1A BEEEF L N2 & T4 AR &
FAREBHA ZETAF+ A= T RRESRES
#H145% 2 BARIEME - (EHIAF R4.75% 51 8 F BE
RAR=+BRT=ZA=TBEEFEFERIAF—K
BREFHERFNEREFF10.90% ¢

AR EFRESEIPTEE A RRASITETA:
BiME s I AR AR - OB R IE R BB R & M EE )
MERNAMETAERZRANTETA B4
WAL ERITE TR EBIR.

R BB G TR FEI95 - AN D Al B AR EH 2
FENPERFHEERE RZTTRF+A=
+—Hi¥360,973,000/ 70 ° £ A L2 AR ERIENE
[EfERIR IR 2 RRESF 2 BEMISTIRMEE ARQ
AIRAIRRESFRE 2 RARITETADERIEAR
Bt ABRZERMEE RS F+=_A=1+—
H3£802,158,000/ 7T (Hi7£28) - ARFTET A Z A
ARERBYEESERMGEEMAREETEERAA
{& FMonte Carlo SimulationfE X 5t 5 - I & & B &%
AR 2 (TR R G o A 7 B M #: 147,330,000/ 7L E 51
w‘rmuyﬁn?‘:ﬂ
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25.

26.

27.

INVENTORIES 25. 78
Group Company
rE PN

2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FHET THET FAT
Raw materials R A4 %% 23,123 33,486 = =
Work in progress EEm 6,201 12,644 - =
Finished goods ERK 12,249 38,744 = =
Completed properties for sale BRI FEME 449,859 280,544 = =
491,432 365,418 - -

At 31 December 2006, the Group’s completed properties for sale
with a net book value of approximately HK$6,209,000 (2005:
HK$5,986,000) were pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans
(note 30).

During the year, completed properties for sale that amounted to
approximately HK$6,391,000 (2005: HK$45,005,000) were
transferred to investment properties for the purposes of investment
of the Group (note 20).

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

The properties under development for sale are located in Mainland
China and stated at cost less impairment losses as at 31 December
2006.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Under normal circumstances, the Group does not grant any credit
terms to its customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and to minimize credit risk. Overdue
balances are regularly reviewed by management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate
to a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

26.

27.

R-BEXFE+-_A=+—0 BEEFELE
6,209,000/ 7T (ZZZ R 4 15,986,000/ 1) Z
REBEZERZHFENEDERAEERITER
2 AR (F3E30) ©

FRNBENZFEYHEL6,391,0008 T (ZF
TR F 45,005,000/ 70) BEEBEEREMERE
ANEBE 2 ®RE (H5E20) ©

BREPEEWE

REBZERFF-A=1T—H URHBEKREN
BRTFEMRIZRANRBEE B AR

FE W R K

EERRAT AEBFgREEFPROERED-
REB AL E AR E 2 FE W RIR R FF B AR 22 1)
FREEERR - BRFKAREHERE TN
T o R BT R AR 2 R BRFOS R %
BETRZRZER BAKEYEBEET 2
B\ o e WK BR B ST SR 0R -
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27. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 27. EWER (&) "
T
m
An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at balance sheet date is REE R BREERZREDITAT =
as follows: é
Z
Group =
il 0
rEE =
2006 2005 Q
HK$’000 HK$’000 ':'
FEx FHET =
_'
m
Within one year —F R 151,384 290,699 ;U>
One to two years —FEWENRN 14,106 18,932 <
Two to three years MFEE=FNRA 6,195 12,355 =
Over three years =FE 1,138 379 5
e
172,823 322,365 S
Less: Impairment for trade receivables R - U BR BORE (12,891) (18,704) .
o
150,032 303,661 S
28. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 28. EBPBEBROAAEBIFEZERMEE
PROFIT OR LOSS
Group Company
REME b NN
2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FHT F#&xT FHT
At market value: RmE:
Listed equity investments EREBZ LT
in Hong Kong MR E 670 560 670 560
Listed equity investments EFBEAEZ £
in Mainland China BmERE 588 = - =
Listed equity investments RN £
in Overseas R ERE 4,369 = - =
At fair value: BRARIE:
Investment in convertible bonds AR ESFIEE 302,158 = 302,158 =
307,785 560 302,828 560
The above listed equity investments at 31 December 2005 and 2006 NERZFEERFR_FEF+A=1+—8
were classified as held for trading. For details of investment in ZERUREDBRARIEEERE -G R
convertible bonds, please refer to note 24(a). BEHFRE 15 w2 MEE24() °
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29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20. BERREEEY
Group Company
AEE AT

2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET FHT
Cash and bank balances e RIRITET 1,446,592 2,213,165 32,770 78,541
Time deposits TE BB X 2,765,076 1,295,365 2,153,294 1,052,339

Cash and cash equivalents HehBEeEEY 4,211,668

3,608,530 2,186,064 1,130,880

At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”) amounted to HK$1,987,483,000
(2005: HK$2,306,938,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies. However, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for the other currencies through banks authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The carrying amounts of the cash and
cash equivalents approximate to their fair values.

REER AEEBUARE ([ARE])SHEZER
& MER1T#5 17 £1,987,483,0008 C (T T H
£ :2,306,938,000/8 L) - AR AT B H 5%
AE M E B R - AR TR AR B AN B I ) R 4
[ EERNESERTE NEEEFEEREEE
THNEXB ZRITHEARBHIBAHMERK-

FHRRITZ R @R B B BRITTEREERT)
MERBAE -ERERER2EFRPAR—BE
—EARAEF RFALEZNEGREHERME L
ZREENEREREEROANE -ReRRE
EEMZEREEEAARERE.
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30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS 30. 52 R1TER o
I
m
2006 2005 =
Effective Effective ﬁ
interest interest =
Group rate (%) Maturity HK$’000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 %
rEE BRFIE(%) E3) TR BT (%) 3|5 FHT %
<
Current B Z
_'
Secured BIEA 5.84-6.43 2007 17,941 6.70-6.75 2006 50,922 =
Unsecured R 4.86-6.73 2007 1,858,616 4.52-6.90, 2006 1,998,582 %
LIBOR+0.55 8
) 2
LIBOR+1.5, =
SIBOR+0.75 S
2
Iy
1,876,557 2,049,504 %
@)
Non-current FRE e
Secured HHEA 5.75-6.84 2009-2020 1,610,667 - - - =
Unsecured EH 5.18-5.43 2008-2011 3,896,311 LIBOR+0.63 2007-2009 2,132,653 8
LIBOR+0.48 -
LIBOR+0.85
5,506,978 2,132,653
7,383,535 4,182,157
2006 2005
Effective Effective
interest interest
Company rate (%) Maturity HK$’000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
AAHE BRAIE (%) E) TR B BRFIZ (%) 3| THT
Current TE
Unsecured R - - - LIBOR+0.55 2006 736,735
LIBOR+0.85,
SIBOR+0.75
- 736,735
Non-current FE
Unsecured g LIBOR+0.48 2011 3,617,235 LIBOR+0.63 2007-2009 2,132,653
LIBOR+0.85
3,617,235 2,869,388
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30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (Continued)

Group Company
AEE AT
2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHIT FER T
Analysed into: A
Bank loans repayable: ARRZROIERK:
Within one year —FRN 1,876,557 2,049,504 - 736,735
In the second year MERA 279,076 542,857 - 542,857
In the third to fifth years, “EZRER
inclusive (BEEEWRTF) 3,637,169 1,589,796 3,617,235 1,589,796
Beyond five years AFERE 1,590,733 - - -
7,383,535 4,182,157 3,617,235 2,869,388
(@ Bank loans amounting to HK$1,628,608,000 (2005: (a) RITEREFEAE1,628,608,0008 L (—FZ

HK$50,922,000) were secured by: F%F:50,922,000/57T) * HIA T EEEER:

() certain of the Group’s land and buildings which have an () AEER@FES H£455,730,0008
aggregate net book value of approximately HK$5,730,000 TZATEIHREF(ZETRF:
(2005: HK$2,432,000 and investment properties with an 2,432,000/ 7t & 48 {E 4 /33,628,000
aggregate value of approximately HK$33,628,000) (notes B2 EWME) (2R RHTFE15R
15 and 20 respectively); 20)

(i) certain of the Group’s properties under development with a (i) A& EREFELA122,737,000% 7T
net book value of approximately HK$ 122,737,000 (2005: (ZZEZTRHF:68,310,0008T) 2 & T
HK$68,310,000) (note 19); BERPYE (FizE19)

(i) certain of the Group’s completed properties for sale with a (i) AEEBREFEL 46,209,000 T (=
net book value of approximately HK$6,209,000 (2005: TEHF:5,986,00087C) 2K TEE
HK$ 5,986,000) (note 25); and B2 E W (MisE25) + &

(iv) the ownership of Jingdong Expressway. The net book value (iv) FIRERARTARE FIRERAKER
of Jingdong Expressway was approximately M FEA52,913,082,000/8 T (ZFF
HK$2,913,082,000 (2005: Nil) (note 15). RE T T) (MiFE15) ©

(b) Except for the bank loan equivalent to approximately (b) BT HEERKS,617,235,0008 T2 SR1TE

HK$3,617,235,000 which is denominated in United States
dollars, all borrowings are in RMB.

FARTTRHEIN EREFAUAAREHE
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30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (Continued) 30. FEMITER (&) "
I
m
Other interest rate information: HAth BRI =B =
=
Group =
rEE =
2006 2005 (é
Fixed rate Floating rate Fixed rate Floating rate o
B E R & FEF = & 7E | = FEA ,:'
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 =
FER FEx THT THT i
gy >
Bank loans — secured HRITE R — B IKF 37,875 1,590,733 50,922 - Z
Bank loans — unsecured RITE R — EIL 2,124,291 3,630,636 1,245,939 2,885,296 )E
=
Company %
RKAF] %
2006 2005 S
Fixed rate Floating rate Fixed rate Floating rate =
= = Y (o))
B E R &= F BRI Eifabi] P FENF =
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FET FHET FHET
Bank loans — unsecured $R1TE K — K I - 3,617,235 = 2,869,388
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s current REBRARAT 2 RE RIEREEE < BREEH
and non-current borrowings approximate to their fair values. ERNARERE-
31. TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES N.ENERRRENEE
An aged analysis of the trade and notes payables as at the balance REE BIZNRE B E 2 BIEARENR
sheet date, based on the payment due date, is as follows: BB :
Group
rE
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHT
Within one year —F A 121,078 135,606
One to two years —FEWMEN 6,642 12,501
Two to three years MEE=FN 3,069 5,448
Over three years =FLAE 47,312 41,904
178,101 195,459
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32. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year

are as follows:

32. JEERE

AERBERBRREREEZEHNT:

Group rE
Deferred tax liabilities: RIENIAEE!
Fair value Accelerated
Timing adjustment tax
differences  Revaluation of arising from depreciation
on sales investment Revaluation  acquisition of on investment
recognition properties of assets subsidiaries properties Total
Al —x
HEHE RE WEAREE RENF
BRZEZ MEER BEBff ZARERE NERERE ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tk T Tk Fib Tk Tk
At 1 January 2006 RZFERF
—A—H 12,589 57,541 7,707 11,717 40,563 130,117
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to ~ ANEER Uz EK D
the income statements Mg/ GEAMER)
during the year (note 10) ZIEERIE
(FzE10) (6,230) 38,661 - - 7,611 40,042
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36)  KWE—KH B A A
(Fiz+36) - - - 195,932 - 195,932
At 31 December 2006 R-BEXE
+=-A=t+—-H 6,359 96,202 7,707 207,649 48,174 366,091
Deferred tax assets: EEHIBEE:
Losses
Timing  available for
differences offsetting
on sales against future Revaluation of Tax effect
recognition  taxable profit investments of LAT Others Total
] B 8
HERE RRERB THEERZ
BRAZRZ Bz BB REEM BBE Hity &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FTHET FTHET FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2006 RZZTERF
—RA—A - - 723 - 326 1,049
Deferred tax credited to REEFARRZ
equity during the year BB - - 1,142 - - 1,142
Deferred tax credited to the AEEF AR @R
income statements ZBIERIE
during the year (note 10) (Fit7E10) 9,410 2,276 = 8,951 2,667 23,304
At 31 December 2006 R-BEXRF
+=A=t+—-H 9,410 2,276 1,865 8,951 2,993 25,495
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32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 32 EERIE ()

Group RAEHE
Deferred tax liabilities: BEFIBEE

Fair value Accelerated
Timing adjustment tax
differences  Revaluation of arising from depreciation
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on sales investment Revaluation  acquisition of on investment
recognition properties of assets a subsidiary properties Total
A —x
HEH RE HEAREE REWEME
BRAZEE MESR BEBR 2ZAAERE BERE aF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FTAT THT THT TR THT
At 1 January 2005 R-ZTZTRF
—A—H 778 39,386 7,707 11,717 32,164 91,752
Deferred tax charged to AEERKERF
the income statements MR 2 IEEHIE
during the year (note 10) (Fft£10) 11,811 18,155 - - 8,399 38,365
At 31 December 2005 RZZTRF
+-RA=+—H 12,589 57,541 7,707 1,717 40,563 130,117
Deferred tax assets: BEFIREE:
Revaluation of
investments Others Total
REE Hty &5t
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
T FHT FHIT
At 1 January 2005 RZZEETRF—H—H 1,145 326 1,471
Deferred tax debited to equity AEFREZPINBRZ
during the year RIEF B (422) = (422)
At 31 December 2005 RZZZRF+_A=+—H 723 326 1,049

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$569,179,000 AEERBEERFRANEZHBEES A

(2005: HK$405,838,000) and in Mainland China of HK$179,486,000
(2005: HK$160,245,000) that are available for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as
they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for years
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

At 31 December 2006, there was no significant unrecognised deferred
tax liability (2005: Nil).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

569,179,000 7t (== Z A 4 : 405,838,000
HBIL) 179,486,000 T (—EE R &
160,245,000 ) « 7] {EHSHE A EIE 2 A F]
ZRRERB S AR ZEBRIREBES
FZHB AR 7 T8 R 24 v B A LA 88
FERBURF MW ERZEFBEBRRECHIBE
go

E/‘fgg/\i-i— A=+—H WEEMERR
REEHBRBE(—TTHF E) -

ARRAS BRI BRI &
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33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. |®RA
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER T
Authorised: JETE !
5,000,000,000 (2005: 3,000,000,000) HREEC.0SBIT (ZEZTHF:0.05%87T)
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 2 &8 A%5,000,000,0000%
(2005: HK$0.05) each (ZZZ A % :3,000,000,0008%) 250,000 150,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRERE:
2,821,449,966 (2005: 2,482,413,966) BREMEC.05% T (ZEZERF:0.0587T) 2
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 TLiEA%2,821,449,966/%
(2005: HK$0.05) each (ZZZTFH5:2,482,413,9660% ) 141,073 124,121

During the year, the movements in share capital were as follows:

@)

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual general
meeting on 12 June 2006, the authorised share capital
of the Company was increased from HK$150,000,000 to
HK$250,000,000 by the creation of an additional 2,000,000,000
shares of HK$0.05 each.

Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company, the Company and a placing agent
entered into the Placing and Subscription Agreement on 26
October 2006 pursuant to which the placing agent agreed to
place 300,000,000 shares at price of HK$2.91 per share to
independent investors. While Shum Yip Holdings Company
Limited agreed to subscribe, and the Company agreed to allot
and issue to the Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited,
300,000,000 shares (being the same number as the shares
placed by the placing agent) at the price of HK$2.91 per share.

On 27 June 20086, a total of 5,864,000 shares of HK$0.05 each
were repurchased and cancelled by the Company during the
year at prices ranging from HK$1.86 to HK$1.90 per share. The
aggregate cash consideration and expenses paid by the
Company for such repurchases, HK$11,138,000, was charged
to the retained profits, as disclosed in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and in note 35(b) to the financial statements.

The subscription rights attaching to 44,900,000 share options
were exercised at the subscription price ranging from HK$1.088
to HK$1.330 per share (note 34), resulting in the issue of
44,900,000 shares of HK$0.05 each for a total cash
consideration, before expenses, of HK$54,467,000.

ERBRARBMT

(@)

(@

BER-EEANFEANAT_ASTHRER
FRERBrZ —ELTBERER ADRIBEH
¥71£2,000,000,000/% 2 J% E{H0.05/8 T HIER
HNIRAD » #55 FE A% 2N F3 150,000,00078 T3 =
250,000,00078 Tt °

RARRRIERARRE (£E) BRAR:
KRB REERBR -_ZZF+A-+X
Bl REERRERZE Bt BEREBERE
B REERER2NB T ZEBREES
300,000,0008% & 7 < 735 (55 #) BRA A
RERE MARRNTREMNRE (£8)F
RAFIEER2.901B I 2 B RET
300,000,000/% % {7 (B g5 il & IR AL & 2 AR
HEBER) °

RZBEZERFANAZ+EH ARFRER
B HH1.86/8 T EB1.90/ T 2 BIgEEE
N sE A $£5,864,0000% & AR EI{E0.057% 7T
2D ARRFEEZMHRERERFA

5 #£11,138,0008 T B RE Ak - B
PR R A RSB ER RV IEHREM T
35(b)°

44,900,00017 i A& FE P b 52 55 #E F1) 2 T AR
1.088% 7T & &A% 1.33058 7T 2 BA& 1T (M
F£34) » FIt - #1744,900,0008% & IR HE E
0.05B T2 B A MBHAZ 2 BRSWA R
54,467,000/ It
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 33. kA& (&) "
T
m
A summary of the transactions during the year with reference to the 2Z PR NEEBETRAEE 2 FAR S B =
above movements in the Company’s issued share capital is as follows: (NE ﬁ
Z
Number of Issued Share =
shares share premium g
in issue capital account Total |
BT =
R E B BRITRA B RER Mt S
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 @
T T T T T T >
Z
Z
At 1 January 2005 and R-ZERF S
1 January 2006 —A—BK -
ZETRF o
—H—H 2,482,413,966 124,121 1,495,348 1,619,469 %
_'
N
Issue of shares (b) 177 (b) 300,000,000 15,000 858,000 873,000 §
Capital redemption (c) HE B f% 2K (c) (5,864,000) (293) = (293)
Share options exercised (d) 1T{E AR (d) 44,900,000 2,245 63,476 65,721
2,821,449,966 141,073 2,416,824 2,657,897
Share issue expenses D EEITHRZ - = (19,974) (19,974)
At 31 December 2006 R-ZBEXRE
+=ZHA=+—H 2,821,449,966 141,073 2,396,850 2,537,923
Share options B AR R
Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share options RAAIERE S RIB B Z T 2R BT 2 R

34.

issued under the scheme are included in note 34 to the financial
statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include any employee or director (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive director)
of any member of the Group, or any employee, partner or director of
any business consultant, joint venture, financial adviser and legal
adviser of any member of the Group, as absolutely determined by
the board of directors. The Scheme became effective on 5 June 2002
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, shall be valid and
effective for a period of 10 years from that date, after which period
no further options will be issued but in all other respects the provisions
of the Scheme shall remain in full force and effect. The remaining life
of the Scheme as at 31 December 2006 was five and a half years.

34.

BN MR MRS ©

BB

ARR

— AL B ([3258))) - AEA

SEXBRNELERZ S BER2BEERHESR
NEEE) ZAAB 2 A BR2EE BEASEEM

KRERARZEERES (BERT
FEMITES) HAKEEFKER

FEIT B
CIPAESEES

B st UEREOEEREZES B
HAEFS JHEFEERRE - TEN_FF
ZENARRER MERSFRBUESEER] B A
ZaT BN E B T FABM-ARHERE
AN E BRI EERE BEMEEMTE &
AEMERIDAZHER-R_FTRFE+_H
=+ B ZAEBTARMRAEF

133



Notes to Financial Statements 817§ 3R = Kiz:
31 December 2006 —ZZNF+_-_A=+—H

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 34. BRESTE (&)

DEX
o
kH_
Hﬁ;
%)
)
)
Y
=3
«
=
T
=
%
ﬁ
BN

134

The maximum number of ordinary shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed
10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the date of approval
of the Scheme unless the Company obtains a fresh approval from its
shareholders. Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme will not be counted for the purpose of calculating such 10%
limit. Notwithstanding the above, the maximum number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time. The 10% limit was refreshed by ordinary
resolution passed by the shareholders at the annual general meeting
held on 12 June 2006 which enabled the grant of further options to
subscribed up to 250,271,396 shares, representing 10% of the shares
in issue as at 12 June 2006. As at the date of this report, the total
number of shares available for issue under the Scheme was
401,471,396 shares (including options for 171,200,000 shares that
have been granted but not yet lapsed or exercised) which represented
14.23% of the issued share capital of the Company at 31 December
2006.

The maximum entitlement of each participant under the Scheme that
is the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each participant (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period, shall not exceed
1% of the total number of shares in issue.

The period under which an option may be exercised will be determined
by the board of directors at their absolute discretion and notified by
the directors to each grantee as being the period during which an
option may be exercised, and shall expire no later than the 10th
anniversary of the date upon which the option is granted and accepted
in accordance with the Scheme. Unless otherwise determined by
the board and specified in the offer letter at the time of offer, there is
no minimum period for which an option must be held before the
option can be exercised.

An option is open for acceptance for a period of 28 days from the
date of offer. The amount payable on acceptance of an option is
HK$1. The full amount of exercise price for the subscription for shares
has to be paid upon the exercise of an option.

The exercise price shall be a price determined by the board of
directors and notified to a participant and shall be at least the highest
of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited’s daily quotation sheet on the date of offer of
grant, which must be a business day, (ii) a price being the average of
the closing prices of the shares as stated in The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of grant, and (i) the nominal
value of a share in the Company.

BRIEARA RIERR R BT E - B A EREITER
B2 R AR AR E BB IR B H 2 B
REAE M Al REEE 1T 2 @A E B IR TEHBBRHIL
EZETEIE BEBITROBE Z10% ° BIFZAT
SEFRAR 2 BB T2 35T AZ10% R
BB o R MR R B TR IR %A T Bl R AR R Al
] EL 4t 8 AR A 51 B3 (8 T S AT 862 18 R AT (S R AR
W ] REEE 1T 2 BRI BN B RSB IB TR E 8
TP 4B 2 30% ° :210% FIRBIZE —TZ N
ANATZAETHREBAF AT ERERBNYT
BRABZREFEH AUTBELETRB
250,271,396 X A& RIEE AR IE  HER T T RF
NATZBEHEETRN10% o RANTRE B 1R
BT &R T 317 2 IR (D #8205 401,471,396%
(BERERLBAHMREABKTEZ A RE
171,200,000 % 10 2 B AR #E) - BAREIRZZE
ERE+_A=Z+—BHBEBETREAZ14.23% °

B2 EERBEZT BN ESHEN LR A
TENEMI2EA HER T2 8E 2 BRGE
(BHREEEITE R ARTTE Z BEGHE) 21T R
BB EE TNMSBEESETRNER L
1%-°

Bl ITEARBESS2RARAE YHE
ZEANSARA MBRITERRERBRER
H R EEAE R 108 F S B Al fEim R 3E
ESeRERERLBREGRE T RFTIE
B B AIETTE B AT MR A A1 A BB U R
BRAKHERR -

BREATERDEREN - TN ARARZRE
AN B AR RS A SN IR B T R D 2 1T 12
BANTEBRER 2B

TEERESSECRBANLBEE-TFEEAS
LEATZESE (IRNBEEER (MEALE
B EEBHMAERZMERAGZARERAH
ZBRHUEmE: ()R EERLEAASEZEERE
EBBARSERARERRERE 2D
Wi (B (B R(iAN R R ID 2 EE
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 34. BBRESE (12)

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme EARFEENRN RIFZT & AR TTE 2 BREDT
during the year:

n
T
m
Z
N
T
m
z
zZ
Number of share options Price of Company’s shares® <
BEARE ARG EE 0
. - =l
Exercise Immediately Z
price of Atgrant  beforethe  Atexercise m
Other Date of Exercise share date of exercise date of 5
At Granted Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled changes At grant period options options date options —
1 January during during during during during 31 December of share of share HKS HKS HK$ HK$ <
2006 the year the year the year the year the year 2006 options options per share per share per share per share =
RoBBRE 6 RMRE  BEGE  ABRA g
RZBEAE R T2 R i WREEE REeH REH  fEZRE >
-A-B  REARE REAGE  RERAN  REAEE  Af4E =t-0  BRERS EREZE  SREn  SREn SREn  SRiEn %
Directors c
iz =
HU Aimin 6,000,000 - (3,000,000) = = - 3000000 1852005 18/5/2005- 1.088 = 1.340 1.350 5y)
#HER 17/5/2010 m
- 7,000,000 = = = - 7,000,000 9/3/2006  9/3/2006 - 1.330 1,390 = = 8
8/3/2011 :_U'
ZHANG Yiun 5,000,000 - (2,500,000) - - - 2500000  18/5/2005 18/5/2005- 1.088 - 1.340 1.350 N
REH 17/5/2010 =
- 6,300,000 = = = - 6,300,000 9/3/2006  9/3/2006 - 1.330 1,390 = = ©]
8/3/2011
ZHAO Gesheng = = = = - 4,000,000 4,000,000 9/3/2006  9/3/2006 - 1.330 1,390 = =
(appointed on 11/5/2006) (note 1) 8/3/2011
HELE (iEa)
(R=2Z ERAT-REZH)
XIAO Rihai = = = = - 4,000,000 4,000,000 9/3/2006  9/3/2006 - 1.330 1.390 = =
(appointed on 11/5/2006) (note 2) 8/3/2011
B8 (Ri2)
(R=F%/EHA +-BAEE)
LIU Jianhua 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) - - - 5T/2002  5/7/2002- 1.265 - - -
(resigned on 23/12/2005) (note 3) 41712007
Ell = (K3
(W=FTRE+-A=1ZRER) 4,000,000 - (4,000,000) = = = - 18/52005  18/5/2005- 1.088 = 1,990 2300
17/5/2010
ZHAO Mingfeng 4,000,000 - (4,000,000) = = = - 18/52005  18/5/2005- 1.088 = 1.340 1.350
(resigned on 7/9/2006) 17/6/2010
HEE - 4,700,000 = = = - 4,700,000 9/3/2006  9/3/2006 - 1.330 1.390 = =
(R-EEAEAALARE) 8/3/2011
LIANG Kaiping 4,000,000 = = = = - 4000000  18/5/2006 18/5/2005- 1.088 = = =
AT 17/512010
- 4,000,000 - - - - 4,000,000 9/3/2006  9/3/2006 - 1.330 1,390 - -
8/3/2011
XU Ruxin 2,000,000 - - - - - 2000000  27/6/2002  27/6/2002- 1.265 - - -
(resigned on 11/5/2006) 26/6/2007
(i3:00 3,500,000 - (1,167,000) = = - 2333000  18/5/2006  18/5/2005- 1.088 = 2830 2880
(R=ZERERAT-RRHE) 17/5/2010
- 3,300,000 - - - - 3,300,000 9/3/2006  9/3/2006 - 1.330 1,390 - -
8/3/2011
ZHU Huoyang 2,000,000 = = = = - 2000000  27/6/2002 27/6/2002- 1.265 = = =
(resigned on 11/5/2006) 26/6/2007
Y 3,500,000 - (1,167,000) = = - 2333000  18/5/2005 18/5/2005- 1.088 = 2870 2830
(W=TTAERAT-BERE) 17/5/2010
- 3,300,000 = = = - 3,300,000 9/3/2006  9/3/2006 - 1.330 1.390 = =
8/3/2011
LIU Weijin
(appointed on 11/5/2006) = = = = - 2000000 2000000  18/5/2005 18/5/2005- 1.088 = = =
Yk (note 4) 17/5/2010
(R=BE-ERAT-EZH) (Miztq)
- - - = - 4,000,000 4,000,000 9/3/2006  9/3/2006 - 1.330 1,390 = =
(note 4) 8/3/2011
(GiEZ)
ZHANG Huagiao
(appointed on 11/5/2006) - - (10,000,000) - - 24000000 14,000,000 9/3/2006  9/3/2006 - 1.330 1,390 3310 3.350
KR (note 5) 8/3/2011
(R=2ERERA1-BEZH) (Hiizs)
TAM Pinglung
(appointed on 11/5/2006) = = = = - 1,200000 1,200,000 3/7/2002  3/7/2002- 1.265 = = =
#EE (note 6) 27/2007
(R=22/ERAT-REZH) (Hiiz6)
= = = = - 2800000 2800000  18/52006 18/5/2006- 1.088 = = =
(note 6) 17/5/2010
(Bizte)
= = = = - 4,000,000 4,000,000 9/3/2006  9/3/2006 - 1.330 1.390 - -
(note 6) 8/3/2011
(Hizze)
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 34. BB AEHE (&)
Number of share options Price of Company's shares*
BREHE ARARGZER
b Exercise Immediately
M- price of Atgrant  beforethe At exercise
M Other Date of Exercise share date of exercise date of
8 At Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled changes At grant period options options date options
l®) 1 January during during during during during 31 December of share of share HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
A 2006 the year the year the year the year the year 2006 options options  pershare  pershare  pershare pershare
I’ RZBERE € NERE  REARE  RERE
& RZBERE R 128 il i BREER fE2BH R RbizAH
X -B-R  RERRE REAGE RERAY WEREH  E4%8  St-R BRERE WEEEE  SREx SKEr SRER SRiEn
T LEE Yip Wah, Peter 2,000,000 - (2,000,000) - - - - 27/6/2002  27/6/2002 - 1.265 - 2.125 2.125
= E3 < 26/6/2007
600,000 - (600,000) - - - - 18/5/2005 18/5/2005- 1.088 - 2.125 2.125
17/6/2010
= 800,000 (800,000) - - - - 9/3/2006  9/3/2006 - 1.330 1.390 2.350 2.250
8/3/2011
WU Jiesi - 10,000,000 - - - - 10,000000  29/5/2006  29/5/2006 - 2165 2200 - -
(appointed on 11/5/2006) 28/5/2011
iR (Note 13)
(R=32/ 5RAT-BEZH) (B3E1)
HU Zuoyuan - 4000000  (4,000,000) - - - - 9/3/2006  9/3/2006 - 1.330 1.390 2900 2900
e 8/3/2011
WONG Po Yan 2,000,000 - (2,000,000) - - - - 27/6/2002  27/6/2002 - 1.265 - 2450 2175
ERM 26/6/2007
600,000 - (600,000) - - - - 18/5/2005  18/5/2005- 1.088 - 2450 2175
17/6/2010
= 800,000 (800,000) - - - - 9/3/2006  9/3/2006 - 1.330 1.390 2200 2150
8/3/2011
WU Wai Chung, Michael 1,200,000 = = = = - 1,200,000 5/7/2002  5/7/2002 - 1.265 = = =
RER 4/7/2007
600,000 = = - - - 600,000  18/5/2005 18/5/2005 - 1.088 - - -
17/5/2010
= 800,000 = - - - 800,000 9/3/2006  9/3/2006 - 1.330 1.390 - -
8/3/2011
Li Wai Keung, Ricky 600,000 - - - - - 600,000  18/5/2005 18/5/2005 - 1.088 - - -
TR 17/5/2010
= 800,000 - - - - 800,000 9/3/2006  9/3/2006 - 1.330 1.390 - -
8/3/2011
43,600,000 45,800,000 (36,634,000)  (2,000,000) - 46,000,000 96,766,000
Other employhees
EfbfEE
Inaggregate 2,000,000 - - - - - 2000000  27/6/2002 27/6/2002 - 1.265 - - -
i 26/6/2007
16,400,000 - (3,400,000 - - (1,200,000) 11,800,000 3712002 3/7/2002 - 1.265 - 2879 2830
(note 6) 20712007
(Hzte)
20,000,000 - (3,000,000 - - - 17,000,000 5/7/2002  5/7/2002 - 1.265 - 2890 2900
41712007
1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) - - - 8/7/2002  8/7/2002 - 1.265 - - -
/712007
23,600,000 - (1,866,000 (1,000,000) - (4,800000) 15934000  18/5/2005 18/5/2005- 1.088 - 2.865 2.890
(notes 4 &6) 17/6/2010
(Bist4R6)
- 76,500,000 - - - (40,000,000 36,500,000 9/3/2006  9/8/2006 - 1.330 1.390 - -
(notes 1,2.4, 8/3/2011
546)
(iR 24
516)
63,000,000 76,500,000  (8,266,000)  (2,000,000) - (46,000,000 83,234,000
106,600,000 122,300,000  (44,900,000)  (4,000,000) - - 180,000,000
*  The price of the Company's shares disclosed as at the date of grant of the A ARRERERTHEENRESNE TELER
share options is the Stock Exchange closing price on the trading day R —R P AMNEEFR BT E - AR B RITE
immediately prior to the date of grant of the options. The price of the Company's BT — B EBENRERRTEREZELHRATT
shares disclosed immediately before the exercise date of the share options is ERERE SEBRETEN —ANIEEFER S MK
the weighted average of the Stock Exchange closing prices immediately before B &) N TS e

the dates on which the options were exercised over all of the exercises of
options within the disclosure line.
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Notes:

1.

Mr. ZHAO Gesheng was formerly an employee of the Group and was appointed
as a director of the Company on 11th May, 2006.

Mr. XIAO Rihai was formerly an employee of the Group and was appointed as
a director of the Company on 11th May, 2006.

Mr. LIU Jianhua resigned as a director of the Company on 23rd December,
2005 and his share options lapsed on 23rd March, 2006.

Mr. LIU Weijin was formerly an employee of the Group and was appointed as
a director of the Company on 11th May, 2006.

Mr. ZHANG Huagiao was formerly an employee of the Company and was
appointed as a director of the Company on 11th May, 2006.

Mr. TAM Pinglung was formerly an employee of the Company and was
appointed as a director of the Company on 11th May, 2006.

On 9th February, 2006, a total of 9,500,000 share options were exercised at
a price of HK$1.088. These options were granted on 18th May, 2005. The
weighted average closing price of the shares on 8th February, 2006 was
HK$1.340.

On 9th March, 2006, a total of 112,300,000 share options were granted to
directors and certain employees of the Company which entitle the directors
or employees to subscribe for shares of the Company at a price of HK$1.330
each during the period from 9th March, 2006 to 8th March, 2011.

On 22nd March, 20086, a total of 4,000,000 share options were exercised at a
price of HK$1.088. These options were granted on 18th May, 2005. The
weighted average closing price of the shares on 21st March, 2006 was
HK$1.990.

On 19th April, 20086, a total of 2,000,000 and 600,000 share options were
exercised at a price of HK$1.265 and HK$1.088 respectively. These options
were granted on 27th June, 2002 and 18th May, 2005. The weighted average
closing price of the shares on 18th April, 2006 was HK$2.775.

On 22nd May, 2006, a total of 2,000,000 and 600,000 share options were
exercised at a price of HK$1.265 and HK$1.088 respectively. These options
were granted on 27th June, 2002 and 18th May, 2005. The weighted average
closing price of the shares on 19th May, 2006 was HK$2.450.

On 29th May, 2006, a total of 800,000 share options were exercised at a
price of HK$1.330. These options were granted on 9th March, 2006. The
weighted average closing price of the shares on 26th May, 2006 was
HK$2.200.

34. BRESE (&)

W

BEALRERAEERNES KT EFRA+—
FEZERARAES

HRBEEAALERNES N2 FRA+—
HEZERARRIES

BREAEN_ETRRF T _A-—t=HAFEEAR
B R -EBERRN_TTF=A=_+= EIS‘EAZ

BRELRERAEERNES KT EFRA+—
FEZERARAES

FIEBEERARRRNES R_EE R EFRA+—
FEZERARAES

AKRBEERARARES R_EE R EFRA+—
FEZRERARAES

RZZTRF=ANA " &3£9,500,0001 x4 AE
1£1.088 B LI - ZEBWREN —TZRFRA TN
HEE - —ZZXF = ANBRS ETFH K ER
1.3407 7T °

RZZTRF=ANE & #112,800,00017 F AR
%$®T§$&%¥1§é~%%§%é$ﬁk@aﬂ%*

TARE=ZANBE=Z——F=A/\B HHNUES
1.330;%7Eafm,lé%21&’/laﬁﬂx1ﬁo
R-ZTTRE=A=1+=H 424,000 ooo@%ﬂﬂ%
LA{B1%1.088 B LT {E 3% %9% ER-_ZTTRFEHA
+NARE T RF=A=1+— Hﬂﬁﬁu%li’:}

W8 A1.990% T o

RZZEZSFMA+HIA&3£2,000,0001 &
600,00017 & A #E 5 5l LA B 18 1.26578 7T )2 1.088/E 7T
TE-ZEERESRINR-"ZZ_FA=++tHAK
—EERFRATNAREE -ZTTRNFNA+NAH
A& AR AN - 15 W T (B /52.7758 T

RZZEZXRERA-+=H & ##2,000,0001% %k
600,00017 B i # 5 E\JL‘A{%W 26578 7T, )% 1.0887& 7T

TE-ZEERESRINR-"ZZ_FA=++tHK
—ETRFRATN\BRE - ZEERFERAATNHA
A&7 AN - 15 W 1 (8 /52.450/8 T

R=TZNEH A=+ B4 $£800,00075 i AE LA
B151.3308 TITE - A SBREN ST F=AN
BEH-—TTXERH A= +/NB RO IEFH KRS
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

On 29th May, 2006, 10,000,000 share options were granted to a director of
the Company which entitle the director to subscribe for shares of the Company
at a price of HK$2.165 each during the period from 29th May, 2006 to 28th
May, 2011 in the following manner:—

Maximum proportion of
option exercisable
including proportion of

option previously exercised Exercisable Period

1/3 1st year from the date of grant of option
2/3 2nd year from the date of grant of option
3/3 3rd year to 5th year from the date of

grant of option

On 5th June, 20086, a total of 800,000 share options were exercised at a price
of HK$1.330. These options were granted on 9th March, 2006. The weighted
average closing price of the shares on 2nd June, 2006 was HK$2.350.

On 15th September, 2006, a total of 2,100,000 share options were exercised
at a price of HK$1.088. These options were granted on 18th May, 2005. The
weighted average closing price of the shares on 14th September, 2006 was
HK$2.830.

On 21st September, 2006, a total of 3,000,000, 933,000 and 4,000,000 share
options were exercised at a price of HK$1.265, HK$1.088 and HK$1.330
respectively. These options were granted on 3rd July, 2002, 5th July, 2002,
18th May, 2005 and 9th March, 2006. The weighted average closing price of
the shares on 20th September, 2006 was HK$2.900.

On 23rd October, 20086, a total of 3,400,000 and 1,167,000 share options
were exercised at a price of HK$1.265 and HK$1.088 respectively. These
options were granted on 3rd July, 2002, 5th July, 2002 and 18th May, 2005.
The weighted average closing price of the shares on 20th October, 2006 was
HK$2.870.

On 24th November, 2006, a total of 10,000,000 share options were exercised
at a price of HK$1.330. These options were granted on 9th March, 2006. The
weighted average closing price of the shares on 23rd November, 2006 was
HK$3.310.

No share options had been cancelled during the year.

34. BRESTE (&)

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

R=ZZTZTFAA=+NAH 4 %£10,000,00015 fE R
BEETARRIESR EZSEEUN_TTAFAHA
—t+hBE=Z——FARA=-T N \BHENUTIAER

LAB#%2.1658 LR AR AR D

AI{TE B AR

=Bl

(RERADITE

BE AR A LE 1) AI 475 EA R

1/3 BEREERERSTE—F

2/3 BEREERERTE-F

3/3 ERLBRECTFE=2FRF

R=TZ/NF/N AR B A ££800,00017 #E AR E LAEE
1.330B TR -ZEBRER ST F=ZANBEE
e 2 ZRE7CA = B R hiAE T 15 T (B 452.350
BTe

MRZZTRFNATHEB & 2,100,000 B HEIA

B81.088BTTITE L EBRER —_ZTRFAA+
NBH e ZFTNFN A+ AR 0T H I
8/52.830% T °

RZZTZFHRA=+—H &%#3,000,0001%
933,00017 % 4,000,00017 8 X # 55 5l LAfE 18 1.2657%8
7~ 1.0887 7T 2 1.330 T1TE % FHERES IR =
TE-F+A=R - —TE-_F+ARH —ZTTHF
AA+NBE=ZZETAF=ANBRE-ZTT F
JUA =+ B R i F U T 8 52.9007% 7T °

R=ZZTZERE+A=+=A"4#3,400,0001% &
1,167,00017 R AR #E 73 Bl LA (B 4% 1.265/8 7T )2 1.0887E 7T
IE-ZEERES N =TT _F+A=H =T
—F+tARBR-_ZETERFRATN\BELE -ZFTT
ANE+ A=+ BRH NEF ST E A2.8705 T

RZZZRF+—HA=+WEAE & #10,000,00005 &
H&L%wﬂ& BROBTLITE 2 EHRIRER —TTRF
ZANBEE -ZETREF+—AZ+=BRGME
T T E /R3.3104 T
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Notes to Financial Statements 817§ 3Rk Z& ki
31 December 2006 —EZ NF+_-_A=+—H

34.

35.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 34. B AECHE ()
During the period from 1 January 2006 and up to the date of this EAfgg/\EF A —BZEARHEFIE A 1 E
report, (i) the Company has granted options to subscribe for A ()2 BB IR H AT R 8 142,300,000 A% £
142,300,000 shares; (i) the options to subscribe for 73,700,000 ﬁ%ﬂx@é (i) AT R 8& 73,700,000 0% % {7 < BE AR #E B &
shares have been exercised; and (iii) the options to subscribe for 1718+ K (iii) AT 52 B#4,000,0000% A% 17 2 RREHE B 2k
4,000,000 shares have been lapsed. As at the date of this report, R E AR & 8 B A I a2 RE171,200,0004% A%
options carrying rights to subscribe for 171,200,000 shares remain 2 BRI AR E TR
outstanding and yet to be exercised.
The fair value of the share options granted during the year of FNFTIR BB IE 2 A Ft 845,998,000/ 7T A 8L
HK$45,998,000 was estimated by Greater China Appraisal Ltd., an BELBWRGEMEEFTEER ARG LR
independent firm of professional qualified valuers. It was recognised BHE-ZTT A AFT-A=+—HILFERRAE
as a share option expense during the year ended 31 December 2006 HERERS (ZEZRF: 16,800,000%7E)
(2005: HK$16,800,000).
The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the year FRATFE L AR T 2 B EA £ E RE D
was estimated as at the date of grant, using the Black-Scholes model, BEmMA O —aFBATRER G EPEEEIE
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options AR 2 R R e TRANEZEAREE
were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used ZEERFT A=t —HIEFEZ#IE:
for the year ended 31 December 2006:
9 March 2006 29 May 2006
—ETREF —EETREF
=AhH AA=-+NH
Dividend yield (%) A% 22 (%) 8 8
Expected volatility (%) ﬁ%ﬁ@() 50 51.64
Risk-free interest rate (%) a2 A1 2= (%) 4.347 4.607
Expected life of option (year) iﬁﬁﬁ @ﬁﬂx%f—;ﬁ (%) 5 5
Exercise price (HK$) 7E(E (B T) 1.330 2.165
Stock price on date of grant (HK$) HH BB RE (BT) 1.390 2.200
The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over BREBRRASIRBE —FHETE HRH
the last year and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns AEARITHEREA ZEZR-BHREREBEES
that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that HARE M EIEZERANRSR BERLEER
the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also R
not necessarily be the actual outcome.
No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the ATEARERTETAEME R ERENR
measurement of fair value. e
RESERVES 35. %
(@) Group (@) &&=

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 59 to 60 of the financial
statements.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-foreign
joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries and associates in the Mainland China has been
transferred to the statutory reserve which is restricted as to use.

REBAFERBAFEZHECAREE
B IR SRR 598 = F0E 4R A R E
FRANZTe

RIBPINE B REZHABED RMARP] AL
BRPBEALE 2 HBA R RBERTZHD
BANCEBREXERFE LREEME-
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35. RESERVES (Continued) 35. f# & (&)
(b) Company (b) &2AF
Share Capital Share
premium redemption option Retained
Notes account reserve reserve profits Total
[y (&N
iz mER BEfE BRE®E REBHF k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHIT
At 1 January 2005 RZZZTRHF
—A—H 1,495,348 - - 671,190 2,166,538
Profit for the year RNEE 5 F - - - 147,390 147,390
Interim 2005 dividend =TT hH4F
R S 13 - - - (49,648) (49,648)
Proposed final 2005 —ETHFE
dividend FORAREIEE 13 - = - (273,066) (273,066)
Equity-settled share PARR AR 32 5 2
option expenses BRER S 34 - = 16,800 = 16,800
At 31 December 2005 WR-ZZHF
+=-—A=+—8 1,495,348 = 16,800 495,866 2,008,014
Issue of shares AT 33 858,000 - - - 858,000
Share issue expenses IR ETH X 33 (19,974) = = = (19,974)
Share option exercised 17 {§ 8% Ik 4 33 63,476 - (11,254) - 52,222
Capital redemption FE B fR AR 33 = 293 = (11,138) (10,845)
Profit for the year REZ G H - - - 767,325 767,325
Interim 2006 dividend ~ —ZF TN
F R R 13 - - - (74,905) (74,905)
Adjustment to prior FFEERBERE
year’s final dividend AR 13 - - - (2,534) (2,534)
Proposed 2006 BRE-_ZT EFEE
dividend & & 13 - - - (564,008) (564,008)
Equity-settled share AR 2
option expenses BRERY 34 = = 45,998 = 45,998
At 31 December 2006 RZ=ZZTZ R F
+=-—A=+—8H 2,396,850 293 51,544 610,606 3,059,293
The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options B ERERIEERHEMRITEZEBREAA
granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the B HBEHRUERRMEF24UARMD MRS 2
accounting policy for share-based payment transactions in note 2.4 EEBIR - E BN A BB RERE TR
to the financial statements. The amount will be transferred to the BRERMDEER-

share premium account when the related options are exercised.
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATION 36. ¥ &6

REZZEXRFNATER AEEBBIE=7
EFRTEKEBRQFMBHILREERR
BREZARQAE ([FRA ] RRPBDERK
V2 BRAR) 2ERE-ERBHENER
HILEFRBERRE BRI EENHILFRS
BRARBRRFAEERARN%ER FIRZEA
BKER —TZRFNABE

On 15 August 2006, the Group acquired a 100% interest in Hubei
Shumyip Huayin Traffic Development Co., Ltd. (“Huayin Traffic”), a
limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC, from
Xiamen Dongfang Jinlong Investment Co., Ltd., an independent third
party. Huayin Traffic holds a 91% interest in Hubei Jingdong
Expressway Construction and Development Co., Ltd., which is
engaged in the construction and operation of the Jingdong
Expressway in Hubei Province, the PRC. The Jingdong Expressway
was opened to traffic in September 2006.

WERBHEH647,252,0008 0> H M
255,285,000/ 70 2 A YR B B (S SRR =
TEEELN

The purchase consideration was agreed to be HK$647,252,000, with
HK$255,285,000 paid on the acquisition date and the remaining to
be paid in 2007.

FRBNWERBMZABREERBEZAN
ERZZRYERN ZAEREERD -

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Huayin Traffic
as at the date of acquisition and the corresponding carrying amounts
immediately before the acquisition were as follows:
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Fair value
recognised Carrying
Notes  on acquisition amount
HK$’'000 HK$’000
W B B R RR
B 5 ZARE SREE
FET FHET
Property, plant and equipment M- BE RRE 15 2,884,805 2,291,070
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHET 109,237 109,237
Prepayments and other receivables TEAT R I H Ath fE Uk 3k I8 131,537 131,537
Long term loans REAER (2,138,373) (2,138,373)
Trade payables FEATBR X (206,354) (206,354)
Accruals and other payables FERTE R R H AT IR (15,717) (15,717)
Deferred tax liability RIEHIERE 32 (195,932) -
Minority interests DR R AE = (117,883) (64,447)
451,320 106,953
Goodwill on acquisition WEEE B2 18 195,932
Satisfied by cash AR XA 255,285
Satisfied by other payables VAL i 5 FRIB 32 A+ 391,967
647,252
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 36. £ &0 (&)
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect WE—RWBARRE RIRSEEY L FRE
B of the acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows: DT
kH_
kﬁ; 2006
8 HK$'000
& T T
&
zx Cash consideration ReRE (255,285)
T Cash and bank balances acquired Fr g & RIRTTETT 109,237
:ié(
£H
= Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents WE—XMBARIZHEBRER
BK in respect of the acquisition of a subsidiary REeEBYRLFE (146,048)
Since its acquisition, Huayin Traffic contributed HK$18,504,000 to BUlEER ERARNEE—SE A+ A=T
the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2006, and the —HIEFEAAREE 2 Wz E 18,504,000 7T
loss of Huayin Traffic for the year ended 31 December 2006 was ARt MEREE-_ZTEFEF+_A=+—HL
HK$19,304,000. F[Z 2 E18 519,304,000% 7T °
Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year, the i E PR AN E RN B A - BN B B A& 5P
revenue from continuing operations of the Group and the profit of S R ANF Em A 8 5 5l £2,301,854,0007%8
the Group for the year would have been HK$2,301,854,000 and 7t &% 1,128,218,000/% T °
HK$1,128,218,000, respectively.
37. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 37. HE—XMBAF
2006
Note HK$ 000
Bt =E TR
Net assets disposed of: HEFEE:
Interest in an associate — Mawan P e B & A R 05 & 2 hE o 912,976
Accruals and other payables FEETE R K H b FE T FRIE (147)
Minority interests DHIR R (402,719)
510,110
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary — Newton & MY B A 5]Newton 2 W z& 11 322,986
833,096
Satisfied by: AR
Cash He 499,858
Other receivables* H th e R IE 333,238
833,096
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37. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued) 37. HE—XHEAF (&) "
T
m
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect HE—FMBAAZRERREEBYWRAFE =
of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: ZoWMATR: ﬁ
Z
2006 =
HK$’000 4
e — <
FHET i
_'
Cash consideration RERE 499,858 %
5
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents HEE—RMBARIZEER g
in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary REEBYWRAFEE 499,858 z
Z
c
o HK$499,858,000 of the total cash consideration was received as at 31 * RIEEREFE+_A=t+t-—HEKRABELAEZ l:E
December 2006 and the remaining HK$333,238,000 was recorded in other 499,858,000/ JT * i #: 58 333,238,000/ 7t 2 5T A EH %
receivables and received on 17 January 2007. ERGIE YER=_EEtF— A+t BKE- %
_'
o ey N
38. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 38. KEHANZH S
(i) As lessor () EHLBEE
The Group leases its investment properties (note 20 to the BIEGERNLHE AEEHRLETIRED
financial statements) under operating lease arrangements, with * (B |mKMNFE20) HBRERMFERE T
leases negotiated for terms ranging from two to eighteen years. NEDF HAVERIT— MR ESKB P LB
The terms of the leases generally also require the tenants to pay RES MRERTERMISREMAHER
security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments BiE®-
according to the then prevailing market conditions.
At 31 December 2008, the Group had total future minimum lease RZZEZERF+_A=+—H K~EERIA
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its T BRI E i 2 T AT BB A = F AV E R IR 2 B
tenants falling due as follows: DREWHA BRI T
Group
KEE
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Within one year —F R 269,514 211,337
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEELT (BREEEMT) 436,385 310,360
After five years RATAE 294,879 141,210
1,000,778 662,907
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38. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Continued) 38. KEHNYZH (&)
(i) As lessee iy ERHEF
5
G The Group leases certain of its properties under operating lease AEBREBESCEHELHEAETTYE D
E‘; arrangements. Leases for the properties are negotiated for terms XHPRER=ZFETNFETE-
§ ranging from three to nineteen years.
=
g At 31 December 2006, the Group and the Company had total REZZEZERFF+FZA=+—H AEBEAR
% future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating AR AT B8 B R < A BUB & & 407
2 leases falling due as follows: ARz D EABOFERELT :
£H
[1_:\ Group Company
B3 rE b NG|
2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&x TR FEx TR
Within one year —ER 6,933 7,548 1,825 2,602
In the second to F_FEFRF
fifth years, inclusive (BEEEME) 16,898 21,536 608 2,434
After five years Ha A F 27,936 64,231 - =
51,767 93,315 2,433 5,036
39. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 39. EAREE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 38(i) B = 3BT sE38(i)FFil 2 A& S AR FEIN REE
above, the Group and the Company had the following commitments B AEERARB 2 EREPELNT :
at the balance sheet date:
Group Company
rE AT
2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&x TR FEx TR
Commitments in respect of FULEE L3 K
acquisition of land and BFUK
buildings, and development BREPYE
costs attributable to properties TR 2 A
under development:
Contracted, but not provided for: B RTADME i R B4 268,075 418,075 - -
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39. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (Continued) 39. EAXREIE (&) o
T
m
In addition, the Group’s and the Company’s share of the associate’s B bt B AREIEEIE AN AEE K AN B FEY =
own capital commitment, which is not included above, was as follows: B NRAR S 2 BEARAEAT ﬁ
Z
Group Company =
HEE N 2
2006 2005 2006 2005 g
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 ':'
FTEx FHET F#&xT FHET =
_'
m
Contracted, but not provided for: EEE RS 8,698 41,507 - - S
z
‘ Z
40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 40. ZIREE <
>
T
At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not provided for in REER BB RRTERE 2 SARBENT: 3
the financial statements were as follows: :_%|
N
o
Group Company =
xE b NG|
2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FTEx FHET F#&xT FHET
() Guarantees for credit () BREREE
facilities granted to: {EH 2 R
Subsidiaries LpEE NG| - - 299,010 124,904
Associates N A 6,877 10,761 - =
A third party * —RE=F" 19,934 = - -
26,811 10,761 299,010 124,904
*  The guarantee granted to a third party is discharged on 6 February 2007. BT EZINERER ST LF - ANARER
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair value of AAREERA Ll AREB KA R
the above financial guarantee contracts of the Group and the EREARERERFNAFLEREK ME
Company are insignificant at initial recognition and the directors %.m?%ﬁ A TR FIB# SR =
consider that the possibility of the default of the parties involved ERFE+A=+—BHFk=ZTTRF+=
is remote, accordingly, no value has been recognised in the ﬂ +— BRI IE R W EEREAEE
financial statements as at 31 December 2006 and 31 December
2005.
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40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

(i)

(i)

At 31 December 2006, the Group has given guarantees to a
maximum extent of approximately HK$678,246,000 (2005:
HK$1,166,133,000) to banks for housing loans extended by the
banks to the purchasers of the Group’s properties.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, if there is default of the
mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is
responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage loans together
with any accrued interest and penalty owed by the defaulted
purchasers to banks. The Group is then entitled to take over the
legal title of the related properties. The Group’s guarantee period
commences from the dates of grant of the relevant mortgage
loans and ends after the buyer obtained the individual property
ownership certificate or up to a maximum of two years after the
full repayment of mortgaged loan by the purchasers of the
Group’s properties.

The directors consider that in case of default in payments, the
net realisable value of the related properties can cover the
repayment of the outstanding mortgage loans together with any
accrued interest and penalty and therefore no provision has been
made in connection with the guarantees.

Pending litigation

A statement of claim dated 27 August 2002 was issued by
Fancheng Property Development Co., Limited (the “Plaintiff”) as
the plaintiff against Shum Yip Group (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“Shum
Yip Shenzhen”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as
the first defendant and Yaoheng Development Co., Ltd. as the
second defendant in a civil claim at the court in Mainland China.

The Plaintiff claimed against Shum Yip Shenzhen for, inter alia,
damages suffered by the Plaintiff as a result of the breach by
Shum Yip Shenzhen of the terms of a cooperation agreement
entered into between the Plaintiff and Shum Yip Shenzhen dated
8 July 1991, which include (i) Shum Yip Shenzhen’s deliberate
register of the properties named Shenfa Garden under the name
of Shum Yip Shenzhen and its refusal to give the properties to
the Plaintiff and (ii) Shum Yip Shenzhen’s appropriation of the
Plaintiff’s sales proceeds to compensate the individual owners
and the construction party of Shenfa Garden while keeping the
income in relation to certain car parks and the kindergarten
situated within the area of Shenfa Garden. The Plaintiff claimed
a total compensation of approximately RMB170 million against
Shum Yip Shenzhen. Shum Yip Shenzhen lodged a defence and
counter claim for compensation of RMB1.3 million against the
Plaintiff on 22 October 2002. This case was heard in court on
26 March 2003 and 5 November 2004, the arbitration process
is complicated and time-consuming. Up to date, the parties are
still waiting for the delivery of the arbitration award. Mainland
China lawyers are of the view that the outcome of the case is
not determinable at this stage.

40. RAREME ()

(i)

(i)

MR-BERE+-_A=+—H0 AEEHRR
THRTAEEMEER 2 FEERARITIE
TSR 4678,246,000/8 7L (—ET R4
1,166,133,000/& 7T ) HIHE{R

REBERGET MZFEFTERZBHE A
SEAERIEERNONZBEFARIERK
B2 BREMNBRITOERZEHAE R E e
AEBERARBEBNENE ZMBE-
AEBNERBBROERIZBERE AR
HEREBFIGERYEMBRERNAE
EMEXERNE2EIRIBE SRR ZZMFIER
=

EERA WERFIR BRI RN 2R F
BRI AR ERIZBEFAREM R
B R E - BB ZFIERERE-

FPR BB FAR

ERBEAEERN - RRERET REL
KOEZERERAR ([RENDRKR =TT
FNAZTERRARRZ2EMBRRR
E&EE R BRAR (TREFRI]) (F—
®E) RBRERRERAR (F-HE)|H

=fE-

REHREFRIIRHRE ZREE (HPa
B EAGERRERYERETR—AN—
FEANBRIMZEERZEZ BRAMER
BR ZFERBE ()WFERIMESE—E
ZEFREIERCMEBSTAREZT WiEB
FRE R HZWE: (VFRERYBAREHE
MEE 2 RE BAFERER 2 EERE
BB EEE WRBEMKIRZEILEA
AT EESERHEREHEZBA RERR
ERNREEENDARBIT0AE T FEF
N —BE-—F+HA -+ - ARSEEEH
BRFR HREERREARKIIEE L.
HER T =F =A==+ HRZZTZNQ
F+—ARARKA (T BIRMEME B
BHES BESFMEEIR B A fEEAD
R REFEATER 2R 2 HR A
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40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued) 40. ZAREE (&)

(i) Pending litigation (Continued) (i) FRRZEREFR (B)

As advised by Hong Kong lawyers, pursuant to a deed (the
“Deed”) entered into on 12 February 1997 by Shum Yip Holdings
as covenantor in favour of the Company as covenantee in
connection with the listing of the Company, the Company could
be able to claim indemnity from Shum Yip Holdings if the Plaintiff
and/or the applicant is successful in its claim against Shum Yip
Shenzhen on the ground that Shum Yip Shenzhen had materially
breached the cooperation agreement, and the circumstances
which gave rise to the above litigation were already in existence

BEEEEMREHRIER RERAXEE (FR
RHAE AN R—ANEF AT —BARA
NE ((ERRmX e A) ZNEMaT 2 g
((TZRE] DHEREARR Emmis T2
) HEREARHEBEFBAERERYZ
BRPBSF AABAREAREEEHRR
WE BERRARRIRERZRAERE M
SIBMEMRARZBEARNRR ZRIERFEF
fEo

at the time of execution of the Deed.

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS NBEALRS
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(a) The Group had the following material transactions with the @@ FA AEBETYIBEALTHETUTERKR
following related parties during the year: R5:
Group
KEE
2006 2005
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
h=s FEx FHET
Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited, RRIEBARRE (£E)
the ultimate holding company: BRAA:
Rental expenses paid BENESAX () 2,214 2,577
Road King, an associate of the Group: REEEE AR
Increase in interest in an associate I —HKEE AT
2 K2 3 N (i) 219,200 -

Shenzhen Gaofa Investment Holding Ltd., 7<= @B <A &R
an associate of the Group: BEREEERERAR:

Purchase of investment properties BAREYZ (iif) - 58,565
Notes: B 2 -
()  The rentals were determined by the directors with reference to the market ) HELEFLEZERZRERSMERE-

prices of similar transactions.

(i)  On 9 November 2006, the Company signed a subscription agreement (i) RZZZAF+—ANB ANARHEENDETR
with Road King to subscribe 20,000,000 of new shares issued by Road BB IR EAR10.9678 7T 2 (BA% AR B SHEEAT
King at a price of HK$10.96 per share. On 22 December 2006, the 220,000,000k -R=FBZ X F+=_A=+
Company paid the cash consideration of HK$219,200,000 to Road King. — B AARRE SR SR E219,200,0007%5

=

(i)  The investment properties were purchased according to the director’s (i) BEMEIRESLEB IS ESERYEME
B2 EERERIEL ZHERBE

valuation with reference to the valuation reports issued by independent

professional qualified property valuers.
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) M BEALRS (&

(o) On 8 December 2006, the Company entered into a contract to ) ARABRZZTEZENFTZANBEIMLEL"
- sell its entire 26.76% interest in Shenzhen SEG-CNEDL Color AR E A R#71,200,0007T (70,965,0007%
& Display Device Corporation (“SEG”), an associate of the Group 7o) MRE (RE) AR ARHEHMFE S
k(h; established in the Mainland China, to Shum Yip Holdings R mERPELCETSERAR (&
§ Company Limited for a consideration of RMB71,200,000 1) AREBRABRRER 2 BEE QT 2
= (HK$70,965,000). 26.76%HE 25
&
% (c) Outstanding balances with related parties: () HEEEALTZREELLH:
o
e
Sl () Details of the Group’s amounts due from minority () AEEREERAERD R RIEFE
[j_:\ shareholders as at the balance sheet date are included in EyNp e PR

note 23 to the financial statements.

(i) Details of the Group’s loans to/from its associates as at the (i) REERAREEENSTEEHEARE
balance sheet date are included in note 22 to the financial BRI KM 522 ©
statements.

(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: 0 REEBFEEBEASZME:
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Short term employee benefits REEE & 7,649 4,929

Post-employment benefits RORAEF 376 175

Share-based payments A& 1 2~ kI8 32,073 9,180

Total compensation paid to FEEBEASME AR

key management personnel 40,098 14,284

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 E=ZME T BEEN P HmRMEES ©

to the financial statements.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 42 Bi#EMEE 2 BN RBE

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank loans, cash
and cash equivalents, equity investments and investment in
convertible bonds. The main purpose of these financial instruments
is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and
trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s investment in Mainland China is mainly through its
subsidiaries and associates, which conduct businesses within
Mainland China. Apart from interest payable, repayment of foreign
currency loans obtained to finance their operations and any potential
future dividend of its subsidiaries and associates may declare to its
shareholders, its revenue, capitalised investments and expenses are
denominated in Renminbi. The Group had not experienced any
difficulties in obtaining government approval for its necessary foreign-
exchange purchases. Assets and liabilities of the Group are mostly
dominated in RMB and United State Dollars. As such, the Group has
foreign exchange exposure to RMB and United State Dollars. During
the year, the Group did not issue any foreign instruments for hedging
purpose.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties
except for the sales of properties, for which no credit is given to the
customers. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and
the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise
cash and cash equivalents and available-for-sale financial assets,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

Liquidity risk
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of

funding and flexibility through the use of short and long term bank
loans.

AEEZIZPBTABRERRITER RERR
SEEY BEERERABREREFRE HEY
BLAZEZREIRAEEEBERES X
SEEFZREMEREERAE HIMEERK
B E X 2 YRR R B R

AEB W TAMEEZAREZRINER
B EERREADECRR BTSRRI LIH
EEERNERRZ SBABEK BENT-

S LR

AEETEFBERTRAELEEBZHBEA
A M R R BIRFEETIRE BRI A
BRIEREBES ZINEEFURAEENB R
m R E 2 R R A RER B R ME IR E IR 2 EAIAR
BN AEE 2 W ERMERE RASIIUAR
BEtE - ARBEERERBAHE AR B FFINE
RIS FEARE - A RE EERABEER
MARERETHE Bt AEEEEHARE
NI IME R - ARE BN E BT EAE
EHRGZNE TR

FERR

AEBMREMNARACEEZE=TETRS K
HEMERGIN RRREP TN EERER-RIE
AEBOBER MERREEMETRIZEP
BRIECBEERBIRF IS HEEREK
fEER- AR B IRRERIY B A

AEBEMBEREE (BRES MRS EEYN
RAHHESREE) 2EERRKEAHTHER
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43. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

(i

(i)

On 3 January 2007, the Company announced that the Master
Framework Agreement was entered into on 29 December 2006
in respect of the proposed disposal of a 49% equity interest in
Huayin Traffic to a subsidiary of Ping An Insurance (Group)
Company of China Ltd., which is listed in Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, for an aggregate
consideration of RMB618,167,657 (equivalent to approximately
HK$618,167,657) which is subject to various conditions. Upon
completion of the transfer of the 49% equity interest in Huayin
Traffic contemplated by the Master Framework Agreement,
Huayin Traffic will remain a subsidiary owned by the Company
with a 51% equity interest.

Details of this proposed disposal are set out in the Company’s
circular dated 24 January 2007 .

On 31 March 2007, the official sale and purchase agreement
was entered into to dispose 49% equity interest in Huayin Traffice.
The contract of the official sale and purchase agreement was
almost the same with the Master Frame Work Agreement. So
far the disposal is still in the progress and the first installment of
cash consideration is expected to be received in June 2007.

On 2 January 2007, the Company announced that on 28
December 2006, the Company, via its wholly-owned subsidiary,
has entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreement to acquire
the entire equity interest in Shenzhen Ya Bao Property
Development Company Limited (“Shenzhen Ya Bao”), an
independent third party, at a consideration in the form of cash
of RMB550,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$550,000,000). Upon completion, Shenzhen Ya Bao will
become an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Details of the purchase of Shenzhen Ya Bao are set out in the
Company’s circular dated 24 January 2007.

On 24 January 2007, the acquisition of Shenzhen Ya Bao has
obtained approval from the relevant regulatory authorities and
Shenzhen Ya Bao has obtained its new business license. The
total consideration was fully paid on 28 February 2007.

The consideration for the acquisition was determined by
reference to the market value of the bare land valued as at 9
December 2006 at RMB623,000,000 by an independent valuer
appointed by the Company after deduction of the liabilities of
Shenzhen Ya Bao.

43. FERAKREE

(i

(i)

R-ZET+HF—A=H ARRLAMHR-Z
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RMIB AR BREBARKEE18,167,6577C
(#E12618,167,657/48 L) < IR IE AR BEHELE 1
o EEERBA% IR ERTAENA
AR EE 51 %RE 2 HB AT -

ZEBHEZHBERNARAN T LF
— A TmBE TR ZE R

REZEZHF=A=+—H A~EEFZE
XEEHH HEFRBAO%ER - EAE
B ANT EARIERBZEAZER-B
Al M EDEETH Bt RS R ESR
—ZERFRNARE

RZBEZLF—A-H ARARAHRE
ZERF+_A-—t+ N \BEBEENBRRG]
TEEWH WEBLE = FIRERET
ERZEERAR (DRYIKE]) 25005 3R
SREAARESS0E BT (WEN55088
PEIT) e AR  RYIEE B B A R 2
BE2ENBAR-

WHERYHEE 2 FBHRNARRAN T
F-A-THATAEZBRK-

R-ZZELF—F - +WE - WERINES
ERSH RS RRFIH /e - R HEE IR &
e ERER - BRECR _TZTLFE_H
“+TNABEEXI

Wiz RESLERRRRE 2B (AEME
ZIEZEHRN —TERE T ANBZEET™

.
TEo



Notes to Financial Statements 817§ 3Rk Z& ki
31 December 2006 —EZ NF+_-_A=+—H

43. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

In January 2007, the public bidding for disposal of the Group’s
equity interest in Topway in Shenzhen Enterprise Ownership
Exchange Centre was completed. The contract was entered into
with Shenzhen Media Group Co., Ltd., an independent third party
incorporated in the PRC, to sell all its interest in Topway for a
total consideration of RMB316,893,800 (equivalent to
approximately HK$316,000,000).

On 9 February 2007, the transaction in the Split Agreement to
divide and allocate all the assets and liabilities of Shum Yip
Logistics was approved on an Extraordinary General Meeting
by way of poll.

On 9 February 2007, the transfer of the Group’s shares in SEG,
representing 26.76% of the total equity interest therein, to Shum
Yip Holdings Company Limited, was approved on an
Extraordinary General Meeting by way of poll.

During the 5th Session of the 10th National People’s Congress,
which was concluded on 16 March 2007, the PRC Corporate
Income Tax Law (“the New Corporate Income Tax Law”) was
approved and will become effective on 1 January 2008. The
New Corporate Income Tax Law introduces a wide range of
changes which include, but are not limited to, the unification of
the income tax rate for domestic-invested and foreign-invested
enterprises at 25%. Since the detailed implementation and
administrative rules and regulations have not yet been
announced, the financial impact of the New Corporate Income
Tax Law to the Group cannot be reasonably estimated at this
stage.

43. FERARSHE (F)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)
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44. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

The comparative income statement has been restated as if the
operations discontinued during the current year had been
discontinued at the beginning of the comparative period (note 11).

45. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 10 April 2007.

44, Lt B & 58
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